
1 
 

 
BRUNSWICK TOWN COUNCIL 

Agenda 
August 15, 2016 

6:00 P.M. – Executive Session 
7:00 P.M. – Regular Meeting 

Council Chambers 
Town Hall 

Roll Call of Members 
 
Acknowledgement of Meeting Notice 
 
Executive Session:  [1 M.R.S.A. §405(6)(C)] Disposition of real property and [1 M.R.S.A. 
§405(6)(D)] Union Negotiations 
 
Pledge of Allegiance 
 
Adjustments to Agenda 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 

a) Approval of the minutes of August 1, 2016 
 
Public Comments 
 
Correspondence 
 
COMMITTEE REPORTS 

• Human Rights Task Force 
• Teen Center Advisory Committee 

 
MANAGER’S REPORT 
a) Financial update 
b) Revaluation update 
c) Reminder on nomination papers for Council and School Board 
d) Special Permit Approval for Crystal Spring Community Solar Farm 
e) Brunswick-Topsham Design Advisory Committee for the Frank J. Wood Bridge 
f) Report on the State law regarding shooting ranges  
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
 
92. The Town Council will hear public comments on a special amusement license 

application, and will take any appropriate action.  (Manager)  
 
Special Amusement 
Byrnes Irish Pub LLC      Joseph Byrnes 
D/B/A: Byrnes Irish Pub 
16 Station Avenue 

HEARING/ACTION 



2 
 

 
93. The Town Council will hear public comments on amendments to the Municipal Code 

of Ordinance Chapter 16 “Utilities” regarding increasing existing Mere Point 
Wastewater District fees, and to the Sewage Treatment rates within Appendix B, 
Master Schedule of Revenues, Charges, Fees and Fines, and will take any appropriate 
action.  (Manager)   

HEARING/ACTION 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
94. The Town Council will consider adopting amendments to the Municipal Code of 

Ordinance Chapter 9 “Human Services” regarding increasing Emergency Medical 
Service fees and to the Appendix B, Master Schedule of Revenues, Charges, Fees and 
Fines, and will take any appropriate action. (Manager)   

ACTION 
 
95. The Town Council will consider adoption of a “Complete Streets” policy for the Town 

of Brunswick and take any appropriate action. (Manager) 
ACTION 

 
96. The Town Council will consider accepting a report from the Human Rights Task 

Force, and will take any appropriate action.  (Chair Brayman, Councilor K. Wilson 
and Councilor Millett) 

ACTION 
 
97. The Town Council will consider accepting bids on tax acquired properties, and will 

take any appropriate action.  (Manager) 
ACTION 

 
Executive Session:  [1 M.R.S.A. §405(6)(C)] Economic Development 
 

INDIVIDUALS NEEDING AUXILIARY AIDS FOR EFFECTIVE 
COMMUNICATION SHOULD CONTACT  

THE TOWN MANAGER’S OFFICE AT 725-6659 (TDD 725-5521) 
  



3 
 

Brunswick Town Council 
Agenda  

August 15, 2016 
Council Notes and Suggested Motions 

 
 
Executive Session:  [1 M.R.S.A. §405(6)(C)] Disposition of real property and [1 M.R.S.A. 
§405(6)(D)] Union Negotiations 
 

Suggested motion:  
Motion to go into executive session to discuss disposition of real property per 1 M.R.S.A. 
§405(6)(C) and to discuss Union Negotiations per 1 M.R.S.A. §405(6)(D). 

 
CONSENT AGENDA 
a) Approval of the Minutes of August 1, 2016: A copy of the minutes is included in your 

packet.   
 

Suggested motion:  
Motion to approve the Consent Agenda. 

 
COMMITTEE REPORTS 

• Human Rights Task Force 
• Teen Center Advisory Committee 

 
Councilors on the above committees will provide brief updates of recent meetings. Councilors 
may also report on any other committee updates. 
 
MANAGER’S REPORT 
a) Financial update:  This is the monthly report to update the Council and the public on 

where the Town stands financially.  Copies of the reports are included in your packet. 
b) Revaluation update:  This is the monthly update on this project.  A memo from Assessor 

Cathy Jamison is included in your packet. 
c) Reminder on nomination papers for Council and School Board:  Nomination papers for 

Town Council and School Board are available and need to be returned no later than 
Friday, September 9th.  Districts 1, 2 and 6 for both the Town Council and School Board 
will be up for election in November. 

d) Special Permit Approval for Crystal Spring Community Solar Farm:  This item is to 
inform the Council of a Special Permit that was approved by the Planning Board on July 
26, 2016.  Under section 701.G of the Zoning Ordinance, the Town Council has 30 days 
from the Board approval of the Special Permit to exercise jurisdiction over the 
application.  If the Council decides not to exercise jurisdiction, the Planning Board’s 
decision will take effect after the 30-day approval date.  A memo from Anna Breinich 
explains the process in greater detail.  Copies of the memo and the Special Permit are 
included in your packet. 

e) Brunswick-Topsham Design Advisory Committee for the Frank J. Wood Bridge:  This 
item is to inform the Council and public who has been appointed to this Committee.  
Copies of a thank you letter from Topsham and the list of members are included in your 
packet. 



4 
 

f) Report on the State law regarding shooting range:  The Town Manager will update the 
Council on recent changes in State law regarding municipalities’ ability to regulate 
shooting ranges. 

 
PUBLIC HEARING 
 
92. This item is for the Council to hear public comments on a special amusement license 

application from Byrnes Irish Pub.  They are requesting to have small bands, solo acts 
and karaoke from 4 PM to midnight.  Their personal property tax is paid in full.  A 
copy of their application and the public hearing notice is included in your packet.  

 
Suggested Motion: 
Motion to approve a special amusement license application for Byrnes Irish Pub, 
located at 16 Station Avenue. 

 
93. This item is for the Council to hear public comments on a proposal to increase existing 

Mere Point Wastewater District fees, and to amend the Municipal Code of Ordinances 
to list the Sewage Treatment rates within Appendix B, Master Schedule of Revenues, 
Charges, Fees and Fines.  The fees have not been updated since the District was built 
by the town in 1992-1993. A memo from Manager Eldridge, a memo from Finance 
Director Julie Henze and Public Works Director John Foster, as well as existing and 
proposed rate structures, ordinance changes, user charge calculations and a map are 
included in your packet.    

 
Option for the Council if they choose to vote this evening - suggested motion:  
Motion to suspend the Council Rules to allow the Council to vote on this item at this 
meeting. 

 
Suggested Motion: 
Motion to adopt amendments to the Municipal Code of Ordinance Chapter 16 
“Utilities” regarding increasing existing Mere Point Wastewater District fees and to 
list the Sewage Treatment rates within Appendix B, Master Schedule of Revenues, 
Charges, Fees and Fines. 

 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
94. This item is to consider adopting proposed amendments to the Municipal Code of 

Ordinance that would increase ambulance fees.  The Council held the public hearing at 
the last meeting.  The amendments to the Emergency Medical Services will increase 
current fees that have not been updated since 2009.  Finance Director Julie Henze will 
be available to answer questions. A memo from Finance Director Julie Henze with 
supporting documentation is included in your packet.  

 
Suggested Motion: 
Motion to adopt amendments to the Municipal Code of Ordinance Chapter 9 “Human 
Services” regarding increasing amending Emergency Medical Service fees and to the 
Appendix B, Master Schedule of Revenues, Charges, Fees and Fines. 

 



5 
 

95. This item is for the Council to consider adopting a “Complete Streets” policy for the 
Town of Brunswick.  The Bicycle & Pedestrian Advisory Committee has promoted 
the development of a complete streets policy for Brunswick.  Complete Streets is the 
concept of integrating people and place in the planning, design, construction, 
operation and maintenance of transportation networks.  A memo from Manager 
Eldridge and the draft policy is included in your packet. 

 
Suggested Motion: 
Motion to adopt the “Complete Streets” policy for the Town of Brunswick. 

 
96. This item, sponsored by the Task Force, is for the Council to consider accepting a 

report from the Human Rights Task Force and to allow them to continue to meet until 
the end of this year.  HRTF will be reviewing the draft at its meeting on August 11, 
2016 and expects to have it finalized for delivery at the August 15 Council meeting.  
Copies will be distributed to the Council and added to the on-line packet as soon as 
available.  

 
Suggested Motion: 
Motion to accept the report from the Human Rights Task Force and to authorize them 
to continue to meet until the end of 2016. 

 
97. This item is for the Council to consider accepting bids on tax-acquired properties.  The 

Town opened bids on tax-acquired property on August 1, 2016 at 1:15 PM.  There 
were no bids on 0 Coombs Road, Parcel 038-004-00B. A memo from Finance Director 
Julie Henze with a listing of properties and bids received is included in your packet.   

 
Suggested Motion: 
Motion to accept a bid for 403 Bath Road in the amount of $15,500 for the property 
known as Parcel U08-63. 
 
Motion to accept a bid for 16 Jordan Avenue in the amount of $57,000 for the property 
known as Parcel 046-012. 

 
Executive Session:  [1 M.R.S.A. §405(6)(C)] Economic Development 
 

Suggested motion: 
Motion to go into executive session to discuss economic development per 1 M.R.S.A. 
§405(6)(C) 

 
Suggested Motion:  
Motion to adjourn the meeting. 

 



 
 

 
CONSENT AGENDA - A 
BACK UP MATERIALS 



andDraft 
BRUNSWICK TOWN COUNCIL 

Minutes 
August 1, 2016 

7:00 P.M. 
Council Chambers 

Town Hall 
85 Union Street 

 
Councilors Present: W. David Watson, Stephen S. Walker, Suzan Wilson, John M. 

Perreault, Jane F. Millett, Kathy Wilson and Alison Harris 
 
Councilors Absent: Sarah E. Brayman and Daniel E. Harris 
 
Town Staff Present: John S. Eldridge, III, Town Manager; Fran Smith, Town Clerk; Derek 

Scrapchansky, Assistant Town Manager; Julie Henze, Finance 
Director; John Foster, Director of Public Works; Ken Brillant, Fire 
Chief; and TV video crew 

 
Chair Brayman called the meeting to order, asked for roll call, acknowledged that the meeting 
was properly noticed, and led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
Adjustments to Agenda:   
 
Councilor A. Harris moved, Councilor K. Wilson seconded, to adjust the agenda to add 
an item for the Town Council to consider a letter from the Topsham Design Advisory 
Committee (DAC), dated July 27, 2016, requesting that the Town Council of Brunswick 
appoint representatives to the DAC, and take any appropriate action.  The motion 
carried with seven (7) yeas. 
 
Councilor Perreault asked questions, to which Councilor A. Harris and Councilor K. Wilson 
responded. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA  (This item was discussed at 7:05 p.m.) 
 
a) Approval of the minutes of July 18, 2016 
 
Councilor Perreault moved, Councilor K. Wilson seconded, to approve the Consent 
Agenda.  The motion carried six (6) yeas. Councilor Walker and Councilor S. Wilson 
abstained as they were not present at that meeting. 
 
Public Comments  (This item was discussed at 7:06 p.m.)   
 
Joanne Hardy, representing PeaceWorks, invited the Council and public to the PeaceWorks 
Fair on the mall this upcoming Saturday from 10 a.m. to 3:00 p.m. 
 
Correspondence (This item was discussed at 7:08 p.m.) 
 
Councilor K. Wilson said she received a citizen complaint about parking on outer Pleasant 
Street, recommending there be no parking from 8 a.m. to 6 p.m. 



Town Council Minutes 
August 1, 2016 
Page 2 
 

 
 

Councilor Perreault said he had a citizen’s complaint about a shooting range on River Road, 
but the state has passed a law that takes local control away from regulating shooting ranges.   
 
Councilor Watson stated that the current Brunswick ordinance regarding shooting range is a 
good one and had involved a lot of discussion at the time of its development. 
 
Councilor S. Wilson, Councilor Walker and Councilor Millett asked questions about the 
Town’s ability to regulate the times of use. Manager Eldridge responded that he would report 
back at the next Council meeting. 
 
Councilor Walker spoke regarding the recent Paul’s Marina 70th anniversary celebration. 
 
COMMITTEE REPORTS  (This item was discussed at 7:16 p.m.) 

 Bicycle & Pedestrian Advisory Committee 
 Finance Committee 
 Human Rights Task Force 
 Rivers & Coastal Waters Commission 

 
Reports were given on the above committees. 
 
MANAGER’S REPORT 
a) Council Project Tracking Report  (This item was discussed at 7:21 p.m.)   
 
Manager Eldridge spoke regarding this item. 
 
Councilor Millett, Councilor S. Wilson, and Councilor A. Harris spoke regarding this item. 
 
b) Nomination papers for Council and School Board  (This item was discussed at 7:25 

p.m.) 
 
Fran Smith, Town Clerk, spoke regarding this item and responded to questions from 
Councilor K. Wilson. 
 
c) Report by Larissa Vigue Picard, Executive Director of the Pejepscot Historical 

Society  (This item was discussed at 7:28 p.m.) 
 
Larissa Vigue Picard, Executive Director of Pejepscot Historical Society, made this 
presentation.   
 
Councilor A. Harris asked a question, to which Ms. Picard responded. 
  



Town Council Minutes 
August 1, 2016 
Page 3 
 

 
 

PUBLIC HEARING 
 
85. The Town Council will hear public comments on proposed amendments to the 

Municipal Code of Ordinance that would increase ambulance fees, and will take 
any appropriate action. (Manager)  (This item was discussed at 7:40 p.m.)     

 
Councilor Walker opened the public hearing. 
 
Manager Eldridge explained the item and responded to questions from Councilor Perreault. 
 
Richard Fisco, 2 Lincoln Street, spoke regarding this item. 
 
Tom Soucy, 2 Willow Grove Road, spoke on this item. 
 
Ken Brillant, Fire Chief, spoke regarding this item and responded to questions from 
Councilor S. Wilson and Councilor Walker,  
 
Councilor Millett responded to Mr. Fisco’s questions. 
 
Councilor S. Wilson spoke regarding this item. 
 
Councilor Perreault asked a question, to which Manager Eldridge and Julie Henze, Finance 
Director, responded. 
 
Councilor Walker closed the public hearing. 
 
MOTION 
Councilor K. Wilson moved, Councilor Millett seconded, to suspend the Council Rules 
to allow the Council to vote on this item at this meeting.   
 
Councilor Perreault, Councilor Walker and Councilor Watson spoke regarding the motion to 
suspend the rules. 
 
VOTE ON MOTION 
Councilor K. Wilson moved, Councilor Millett seconded, to suspend the Council Rules 
to allow the Council to vote on this item at this meeting.  The motion failed with four (4) 
yeas since that is not 2/3 majority of the Council.  Councilor Watson, Councilor 
Perreault, and Councilor Walker were opposed. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
86. The Town Council will consider setting a public hearing on a proposal to increase 

existing Mere Point Wastewater District fees, and to amend the ordinance to list 
the Sewage Treatment rates within Appendix B, Master Schedule of Revenues, 
Charges, Fees and Fines, and will take any appropriate action.  (Manager)  (This 
item was discussed at 8:18 p.m.) 



Town Council Minutes 
August 1, 2016 
Page 4 
 

 
 

Manager Eldridge spoke regarding this item and responded to questions from Councilor 
Walker, Councilor Watson, Councilor Millett, and Councilor Perreault. 
 
Councilor Millett, Councilor A. Harris, and Councilor S. Wilson spoke regarding this item. 
 
Ms. Henze spoke regarding this item. 
 
Richard Fisco, 2 Lincoln Street, spoke regarding this item. 
 
Councilor S. Wilson and Councilor Millett asked questions, to which Manager Eldridge 
responded. 
 
Councilor Perreault spoke regarding the motion. 
 
Councilor A. Harris spoke regarding this item. 
 
Councilor S. Wilson moved, Councilor A. Harris seconded, to set a public hearing for 
August 15, 2016, to consider amendments to the Municipal Code of Ordinances for 
Mere Point Wastewater District Fees as proposed and to list the Sewage Treatment rates 
within Appendix B, Master Schedule of Revenues, Charges, Fees and Fines, as proposed.  
The motion carried with six (6) yeas.  Councilor Millett was opposed. 
 
87. The Town Council will consider adopting “An Order Authorizing the Town 

Manager to Execute An Interlocal Cooperation Agreement to Provide 
Emergency Dispatch  Services to the Town of Freeport” and will take any 
appropriate action.    (Manager)  (This item was discussed at 8:50 p.m.) 

 
Manager Eldridge introduced this item. 
 
Councilor Watson moved, Councilor Perreault seconded, to adopt “An Order 
Authorizing the Town Manager to Execute An Interlocal Cooperation Agreement to 
Provide Emergency Dispatch Services to the Town of Freeport”.   The motion carried 
with seven (7) yeas. 
 
(A copy of the agreement will be attached to the official minutes.) 
 
88. The Town Council will consider appointment of a Brunswick representative to 

the MMA Legislative Policy Committee, and will take any appropriate action.  
(Manager)  (This item was discussed at 8:52 p.m.) 

 
Manager Eldridge spoke regarding this item. 
 
Councilor A. Harris nominated Councilor K. Wilson to serve. 
 



Town Council Minutes 
August 1, 2016 
Page 5 
 

 
 

Councilor Walker moved, Councilor Millett seconded, to appoint Councilor K. Wilson 
as the Brunswick representative for the MMA 2016-2018 Legislative Policy Committee.  
The motion carried with seven (7) yeas. 
 
89. The Town Council will have an opportunity to vote for a representative to serve 

on the MMA Legislative Policy Committee (LPC) for 2016-2018, and will take 
any appropriate action.  (Manager) (This item was discussed at 8:55 p.m.) 

 
Councilor S. Wilson moved, Councilor K. Wilson seconded, to support Kristi Eiane 
from Harpswell for the MMA 2016-2018 Legislative Policy Committee.  The motion 
carried with seven (7) yeas. 
 
90. The Town Council will have an opportunity to vote on the annual election of the 

proposed MMA Vice President and municipal officials to serve on the Executive 
Committee, and will take any appropriate action.  (Manager)  (This item was 
discussed at 8:56 p.m.) 

 
Manager Eldridge introduced this item. 
 
Councilor S. Wilson spoke regarding this item. 
 
Councilor A. Harris moved, Councilor Millett seconded, to approve the slate of 
nominations for the MMA Vice President and Executive Committee Members as 
presented on the attached ballot.  The motion carried with seven (7) yeas. 
 
(A copy of the ballot will be attached to the official minutes.) 
 
91. (ADDED) The Town Council to consider a letter from the Topsham Design 

Advisory Committee (DAC), dated July 27, 2016, requesting that the Town 
Council of Brunswick appoint representatives to the DAC, and take any 
appropriate action.  (This item was discussed at 8:58 p.m.) 

 
Councilor A. Harris spoke regarding this item. 
 
Manager Eldridge spoke regarding this item, and responded to questions from Councilor 
Walker.  
 
Councilor Perreault moved, Councilor K. Wilson seconded, to appoint members to the 
Topsham Design Advisory Committee (DAC) based on the Town Manager’s 
recommendations of what committee/organizations should be represented, to also 
include a BDC representative, and to have those committees/organizations provide a 
member to be placed on the DAC.  
 
Councilor Walker, Councilor S. Wilson, and Councilor Walker spoke regarding this item.  
 



Town Council Minutes 
August 1, 2016 
Page 6 
 

 
 

Councilor Perreault moved, Councilor K. Wilson seconded, to appoint members to the 
Topsham Design Advisory Committee (DAC) based on the Town Manager’s 
recommendations of what committee/organizations should be represented,to also 
include a BDC representative, and to have those committees/organizations provide a 
member to be placed on the DAC.  The motion carried with six (6) yeas.  Councilor 
Walker was opposed. 
 
(A copy of the letter from Topsham will be attached to the official minutes.) 
 
Councilor Perreault moved, Councilor Watson seconded, to adjourn the meeting.  The 
motion carried with seven (7) yeas. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 9:14 p.m. 
 
PLEASE NOTE:  THESE MINUTES ARE ACTION MINUTES.  THE ENTIRE 
MEETING CAN BE VIEWED AT WWW.BRUNSWICKME.ORG.  
 
 
 
Frances M. Smith 
Town Clerk 
August 9, 2016 
 

August 15, 2016 
Date of Approval 

 

___________________________ 
Council Chair 

 



 
 

 
MANAGER’S REPORT - A 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



 
 
 

07/31/2016 14:49    |Town of Brunswick |P      1
jhenze              |EXPENDITURE REPORT JULY 2016 |glytdbud

 
 

FOR 2017 01
 

ORIGINAL REVISED AVAILABLE PCT
                                            APPROP BUDGET YTD EXPENDED MTD EXPENDED ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET USED
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
 

00 Fill                               
_________________________________________

 
19000 General Fund Transfers Out    1,453,828   1,453,828            .00            .00            .00   1,453,828.00     .0%

 
TOTAL Fill                          1,453,828   1,453,828            .00            .00            .00   1,453,828.00     .0%

 
 

10 General Government                 
_________________________________________

 
11000 Administration      606,061     606,061      24,204.03      24,204.03            .00     581,856.97    4.0%
11100 Finance Department      733,405     733,405      43,563.53      43,563.53          89.98     689,751.49    6.0%
11150 Technology Services Dept      371,032     371,032      69,617.93      69,617.93            .00     301,414.07   18.8%
11200 Municipal Officers       90,665      90,665       1,136.15       1,136.15            .00      89,528.85    1.3%
11210 Munic Bldg - 85 Union      212,281     212,281       5,836.80       5,836.80      11,355.12     195,089.08    8.1%
11220 Munic Bldg - 28 Federal            0           0       2,481.12       2,481.12            .00      -2,481.12  100.0%
11230 Risk Management      529,827     529,827     143,006.85     143,006.85            .00     386,820.15   27.0%
11240 Employee benefits            0           0     -16,600.86     -16,600.86            .00      16,600.86  100.0%
11250 Cable TV       67,269      67,269       4,452.68       4,452.68      -1,519.11      64,335.43    4.4%
11300 Assessing      315,863     315,863      19,566.76      19,566.76       3,500.00     292,796.24    7.3%
11600 Town Clerk & Elections      347,453     347,453      14,786.79      14,786.79            .00     332,666.21    4.3%
11900 Planning Department      498,664     498,664      24,947.87      24,947.87            .00     473,716.13    5.0%
11950 Economic Development Dept      120,071     120,071       5,200.52       5,200.52            .00     114,870.48    4.3%

 
TOTAL General Government            3,892,591   3,892,591     342,200.17     342,200.17      13,425.99   3,536,964.84    9.1%

 
 

20 Public Safety                      
_________________________________________

 
12100 Fire Department    3,238,027   3,238,027     185,410.09     185,410.09      46,918.64   3,005,698.27    7.2%
12150 Central Fire Station       41,258      41,258         980.55         980.55       3,413.99      36,863.46   10.7%
12160 Emerson Fire Station       51,200      51,200       1,983.77       1,983.77       1,733.91      47,482.32    7.3%
12200 Police Department    3,745,376   3,745,376     203,265.26     203,265.26       3,780.65   3,538,330.09    5.5%
12210 Police Special Detail            0           0         864.34         864.34            .00        -864.34  100.0%
12220 Emergency Services Dispatch      817,420     817,420      40,273.70      40,273.70            .00     777,146.30    4.9%
12250 Police Station Building      104,892     104,892       4,703.41       4,703.41            .00     100,188.59    4.5%
12280 Marine Resources      189,911     189,911       8,976.08       8,976.08            .00     180,934.92    4.7%
12310 Streetlights      215,000     215,000      15,444.92      15,444.92            .00     199,555.08    7.2%
12320 Traffic Signals       31,600      31,600         517.66         517.66            .00      31,082.34    1.6%
12330 Hydrants      465,000     465,000       5,508.64       5,508.64            .00     459,491.36    1.2%
12340 Civil Emergency Preparedness        2,000       2,000            .00            .00            .00       2,000.00     .0%

 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

07/31/2016 14:49    |Town of Brunswick |P      2
jhenze              |EXPENDITURE REPORT JULY 2016 |glytdbud

 
 

FOR 2017 01
 

ORIGINAL REVISED AVAILABLE PCT
                                            APPROP BUDGET YTD EXPENDED MTD EXPENDED ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET USED
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
TOTAL Public Safety                 8,901,684   8,901,684     467,928.42     467,928.42      55,847.19   8,377,908.39    5.9%

 
 

30 Public Works                       
_________________________________________

 
13100 Public Works Administration      492,640     492,640      21,699.62      21,699.62         274.75     470,665.63    4.5%
13110 PW General Maintenance    1,720,179   1,720,179      68,497.08      68,497.08       9,532.60   1,642,149.32    4.5%
13130 Refuse Collection      629,847     629,847       6,424.80       6,424.80            .00     623,422.20    1.0%
13140 Recycling      331,644     331,644        -386.00        -386.00            .00     332,030.00    -.1%
13150 PW Central Garage      724,456     724,456      21,826.15      21,826.15       9,125.01     693,504.84    4.3%

 
TOTAL Public Works                  3,898,766   3,898,766     118,061.65     118,061.65      18,932.36   3,761,771.99    3.5%

 
 

40 Human Services                     
_________________________________________

 
14100 General Assistance      173,351     173,351       7,214.76       7,214.76       1,989.85     164,146.39    5.3%
14120 Health & Social Services        2,766       2,766            .00            .00            .00       2,766.00     .0%

 
TOTAL Human Services                  176,117     176,117       7,214.76       7,214.76       1,989.85     166,912.39    5.2%

 
 

45 Education                          
_________________________________________

 
14500 School Department   37,695,535  37,695,535     751,704.25     751,704.25            .00  36,943,830.75    2.0%

 
TOTAL Education                    37,695,535  37,695,535     751,704.25     751,704.25            .00  36,943,830.75    2.0%

 
 

50 Recreation and Culture             
_________________________________________

 
15000 Recreation Administration      431,115     431,115      24,218.03      24,218.03         732.93     406,164.04    5.8%
15050 Rec Buildings and Grounds      723,726     723,726      40,674.41      40,674.41      -5,371.62     688,423.21    4.9%
15250 Rec Building 211      175,585     175,585       3,817.37       3,817.37      -1,375.96     173,143.59    1.4%
15300 Teen Center       16,000      16,000      16,000.00      16,000.00            .00            .00  100.0%
15310 People Plus      123,200     123,200     117,200.00     117,200.00            .00       6,000.00   95.1%
15400 Curtis Memorial Library    1,373,500   1,373,500     113,208.37     113,208.37            .00   1,260,291.63    8.2%

 
TOTAL Recreation and Culture        2,843,126   2,843,126     315,118.18     315,118.18      -6,014.65   2,534,022.47   10.9%

 
 

60 Intergovernmental                  
_________________________________________

 
 



 
 
 

07/31/2016 14:49    |Town of Brunswick |P      3
jhenze              |EXPENDITURE REPORT JULY 2016 |glytdbud

 
 

FOR 2017 01
 

ORIGINAL REVISED AVAILABLE PCT
60       Intergovernmental                  APPROP BUDGET YTD EXPENDED MTD EXPENDED ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET USED
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
16000 County tax    1,410,855   1,410,855            .00            .00            .00   1,410,855.00     .0%

 
TOTAL Intergovernmental             1,410,855   1,410,855            .00            .00            .00   1,410,855.00     .0%

 
 

70 Unclassified                       
_________________________________________

 
17000 Promotion and Development      171,699     171,699     125,362.61     125,362.61            .00      46,336.39   73.0%
17010 Additional School Assistance       10,000      10,000            .00            .00            .00      10,000.00     .0%
17020 Cemetery Care        7,000       7,000       1,000.00       1,000.00            .00       6,000.00   14.3%
17030 Wage Adjustment Account      158,000     158,000            .00            .00            .00     158,000.00     .0%

 
TOTAL Unclassified                    346,699     346,699     126,362.61     126,362.61            .00     220,336.39   36.4%

 
 

80 Debt Service                       
_________________________________________

 
18020 2006 CIP G/O Bonds      236,000     236,000            .00            .00            .00     236,000.00     .0%
18030 2011 GO CIP Bonds      226,135     226,135            .00            .00            .00     226,135.00     .0%
18040 Police Station Bond      394,625     394,625            .00            .00            .00     394,625.00     .0%

 
TOTAL Debt Service                    856,760     856,760            .00            .00            .00     856,760.00     .0%

 
 

GRAND TOTAL   61,475,961  61,475,961   2,128,590.04   2,128,590.04      84,180.74  59,263,190.22    3.6%
 

                                           ** END OF REPORT - Generated by Julie Henze **                                           
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

07/31/2016 14:47    |Town of Brunswick |P      1
jhenze              |REVENUE REPORT JULY 2016 |glytdbud

 
 

FOR 2017 01
 

ORIGINAL REVISED ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL MTD REMAINING PCT
                                         ESTIM REV EST REV REVENUE REVENUE REVENUE COLL
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
 

10 Taxes                              
_________________________________________

 
111190 41101  Property Taxes   40,255,220  40,255,220            .00            .00                 40,255,220.00     .0% 
111190 41103  Deferred Property Tax     -200,000    -200,000            .00            .00                   -200,000.00     .0% 
111190 41104  Tax Abatements      -75,000     -75,000            .00            .00                    -75,000.00     .0% 
111190 41105  Interest on Taxes       65,000      65,000       8,954.84       8,954.84                     56,045.16   13.8% 
111190 41106  Tax Lien Costs Revenu       15,000      15,000         530.32         530.32                     14,469.68    3.5% 
111190 41107  Tax Lien Interest Rev       15,000      15,000            .00            .00                     15,000.00     .0% 
111190 41109  Payment in Lieu of Ta      225,000     225,000            .00            .00                    225,000.00     .0% 
111190 41199  Miscellaneous tax adj        4,279       4,279            .00            .00                      4,279.00     .0% 
111191 41110  Excise Tax - Auto    2,965,000   2,965,000     302,221.88     302,221.88                  2,662,778.12   10.2% 
111191 41111  Excise Tax Boat/ATV/S       25,000      25,000       1,863.30       1,863.30                     23,136.70    7.5% 
111191 41112  Excise Tax - Airplane        3,000       3,000            .00            .00                      3,000.00     .0% 

 
TOTAL Taxes                        43,297,499  43,297,499     313,570.34     313,570.34                 42,983,928.66     .7%

 
TOTAL REVENUES   43,297,499  43,297,499     313,570.34     313,570.34                 42,983,928.66

 
20 Licenses & Fees                    
_________________________________________

 
121111 42207  Passport Fees       11,000      11,000         825.00         825.00                     10,175.00    7.5% 
121111 42209  Passport Picture Reve        4,000       4,000         255.00         255.00                      3,745.00    6.4% 
121411 42100  Building Permits      145,000     145,000      19,924.70      19,924.70                    125,075.30   13.7% 
121411 42101  Electrical Permits       34,000      34,000       5,196.27       5,196.27                     28,803.73   15.3% 
121411 42102  Plumbing Permits       23,000      23,000       3,247.50       3,247.50                     19,752.50   14.1% 
121611 42200  Hunting & Fishing Lic        1,200       1,200          66.00          66.00                      1,134.00    5.5% 
121611 42201  Dog License Fee        2,550       2,550          55.00          55.00                      2,495.00    2.2% 
121611 42202  Vital Statistics       48,000      48,000       4,390.00       4,390.00                     43,610.00    9.1% 
121611 42203  General Licenses       20,770      20,770         370.00         370.00                     20,400.00    1.8% 
121611 42204  Victulars/Innkeepers       19,425      19,425         875.00         875.00                     18,550.00    4.5% 
121611 42205  Shellfish Licenses       17,950      17,950         275.00         275.00                     17,675.00    1.5% 
121611 42206  Neutered/Spayed Dog L        4,670       4,670          64.00          64.00                      4,606.00    1.4% 
121611 42210  Mooring fees       21,700      21,700         100.00         100.00                     21,600.00     .5% 
121911 42300  Planning Board Appl F       25,000      25,000       1,837.68       1,837.68                     23,162.32    7.4% 
122121 42400  Fire Permits        2,000       2,000            .00            .00                      2,000.00     .0% 
122221 42500  Conc Weapons Permits          400         400          40.00          40.00                        360.00   10.0% 
122221 42501  Parking Permit fee          425         425            .00            .00                        425.00     .0% 
123131 42600  Public Works Opening        6,000       6,000         500.00         500.00                      5,500.00    8.3% 

 
TOTAL Licenses & Fees                 387,090     387,090      38,021.15      38,021.15                    349,068.85    9.8%

 
TOTAL REVENUES      387,090     387,090      38,021.15      38,021.15                    349,068.85

 
30 Intergovernmental                  
_________________________________________

 



 
 
 

07/31/2016 14:47    |Town of Brunswick |P      2
jhenze              |REVENUE REPORT JULY 2016 |glytdbud

 
 

FOR 2017 01
 

ORIGINAL REVISED ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL MTD REMAINING PCT
                                         ESTIM REV EST REV REVENUE REVENUE REVENUE COLL
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
 

131122 43505  FD EMPG grant       15,000      15,000            .00            .00                     15,000.00     .0% 
131132 43103  Highway Grant Fund      199,000     199,000            .00            .00                    199,000.00     .0% 
131142 43104  State General Assista       35,000      35,000            .00            .00                     35,000.00     .0% 
131190 43102  State Tax Exemption R       42,000      42,000            .00            .00                     42,000.00     .0% 
131192 43101  State Revenue Sharing    1,109,837   1,109,837     102,682.56     102,682.56                  1,007,154.44    9.3% 
131192 43106  Snowmobile Receipts        1,400       1,400            .00            .00                      1,400.00     .0% 
134546 43120  State Education Subsi   10,976,063  10,976,063            .00            .00                 10,976,063.00     .0% 

 
TOTAL Intergovernmental            12,378,300  12,378,300     102,682.56     102,682.56                 12,275,617.44     .8%

 
TOTAL REVENUES   12,378,300  12,378,300     102,682.56     102,682.56                 12,275,617.44

 
40 Charges for services               
_________________________________________

 
141111 44110  Agent Fee Auto Reg       50,000      50,000       4,924.00       4,924.00                     45,076.00    9.8% 
141111 44111  Agent Fee Boat/ATV/Sn        1,500       1,500         174.00         174.00                      1,326.00   11.6% 
141211 44121  Rental of Property        1,200       1,200         100.00         100.00                      1,100.00    8.3% 
141611 44131  Advertising Fees            0           0         122.55         122.55                       -122.55  100.0% 
142121 44155  Ambulance Service Fee      850,000     850,000      55,674.63      55,674.63                    794,325.37    6.5% 
142121 44166  Special Detail - Fire        1,000       1,000            .00            .00                      1,000.00     .0% 
142221 44161  Witness Fees        1,000       1,000         300.00         300.00                        700.00   30.0% 
142221 44162  Police Reports        4,500       4,500            .00            .00                      4,500.00     .0% 
142221 44163  School Resource Offic       86,000      86,000            .00            .00                     86,000.00     .0% 
142221 44165  Special Detail - Poli        3,000       3,000       1,024.00       1,024.00                      1,976.00   34.1% 
142221 44167  Dispatch Services fee      143,760     143,760      20,913.29      20,913.29                    122,846.71   14.5% 
143431 44175  Recycling Revenue       20,000      20,000       1,293.10       1,293.10                     18,706.90    6.5% 
144545 44100  School Tuition, etc       83,339      83,339            .00            .00                     83,339.00     .0% 
145051 44121  Rental of Property        1,000       1,000            .00            .00                      1,000.00     .0% 

 
TOTAL Charges for services          1,246,299   1,246,299      84,525.57      84,525.57                  1,161,773.43    6.8%

 
TOTAL REVENUES    1,246,299   1,246,299      84,525.57      84,525.57                  1,161,773.43

 
50 Fines & Penalties                  
_________________________________________

 
151611 45108  Gen License Late Pena          175         175          25.00          25.00                        150.00   14.3% 
151611 45109  Mooring Fee Late Pena        1,250       1,250         100.00         100.00                      1,150.00    8.0% 
151611 45110  Victualers Lic Late P          225         225         200.00         200.00                         25.00   88.9% 
151611 45111  Shellfish License Lat          600         600            .00            .00                        600.00     .0% 
151621 45103  Unlicensed Dog Fines        6,000       6,000         125.00         125.00                      5,875.00    2.1% 
152121 45104  False Alarm Fire        1,000       1,000            .00            .00                      1,000.00     .0% 

 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

07/31/2016 14:47    |Town of Brunswick |P      3
jhenze              |REVENUE REPORT JULY 2016 |glytdbud

 
 

FOR 2017 01
 

ORIGINAL REVISED ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL MTD REMAINING PCT
                                         ESTIM REV EST REV REVENUE REVENUE REVENUE COLL
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
152221 45100  Ordinance Fines          600         600          25.00          25.00                        575.00    4.2% 
152221 45101  Parking Tickets       30,000      30,000       1,970.00       1,970.00                     28,030.00    6.6% 
152221 45102  Leash Law Fines          200         200            .00            .00                        200.00     .0% 
152221 45105  False Alarm Police           10          10            .00            .00                         10.00     .0% 

 
TOTAL Fines & Penalties                40,060      40,060       2,445.00       2,445.00                     37,615.00    6.1%

 
TOTAL REVENUES       40,060      40,060       2,445.00       2,445.00                     37,615.00

 
60 Interest earned                    
_________________________________________

 
161193 46100  Interest Earned       60,000      60,000            .00            .00                     60,000.00     .0% 

 
TOTAL Interest earned                  60,000      60,000            .00            .00                     60,000.00     .0%

 
TOTAL REVENUES       60,000      60,000            .00            .00                     60,000.00

 
70 Donations                          
_________________________________________

 
171952 47000  BDC Contrib to Econ D       30,000      30,000            .00            .00                     30,000.00     .0% 

 
TOTAL Donations                        30,000      30,000            .00            .00                     30,000.00     .0%

 
TOTAL REVENUES       30,000      30,000            .00            .00                     30,000.00

 
80 Use of fund balance                
_________________________________________

 
181100 48000  Unapprop General Fund      600,000     600,000            .00            .00                    600,000.00     .0% 
184500 48004  School Balance Forwar    2,599,363   2,599,363            .00            .00                  2,599,363.00     .0% 

 
TOTAL Use of fund balance           3,199,363   3,199,363            .00            .00                  3,199,363.00     .0%

 
TOTAL REVENUES    3,199,363   3,199,363            .00            .00                  3,199,363.00

 
90 Other                              
_________________________________________

 
191111 49000  Finance Miscellaneous        4,000       4,000         120.00         120.00                      3,880.00    3.0% 
191192 49100  Cable Television      245,000     245,000            .00            .00                    245,000.00     .0% 
191611 49000  Town Clerk Miscellane        1,350       1,350         164.00         164.00                      1,186.00   12.1% 
191911 49000  Planning Miscellaneou        1,000       1,000          16.50          16.50                        983.50    1.7% 

 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

07/31/2016 14:47    |Town of Brunswick |P      4
jhenze              |REVENUE REPORT JULY 2016 |glytdbud

 
 

FOR 2017 01
 

ORIGINAL REVISED ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL MTD REMAINING PCT
                                         ESTIM REV EST REV REVENUE REVENUE REVENUE COLL
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
192121 49000  Fire Miscellaneous        1,000       1,000          11.76          11.76                        988.24    1.2% 
192221 49000  Police Miscellaneous        6,000       6,000         125.00         125.00                      5,875.00    2.1% 
193131 49000  Public Works Miscella        2,000       2,000          49.00          49.00                      1,951.00    2.5% 
194545 49000  School Miscellaneous       63,000      63,000            .00            .00                     63,000.00     .0% 
195051 49000  Recreation Miscellane            0           0       1,700.00       1,700.00                     -1,700.00  100.0% 
199980 48100  General Fund Transfer      514,000     514,000            .00            .00                    514,000.00     .0% 

 
TOTAL Other                           837,350     837,350       2,186.26       2,186.26                    835,163.74     .3%

 
TOTAL REVENUES      837,350     837,350       2,186.26       2,186.26                    835,163.74

 
GRAND TOTAL   61,475,961  61,475,961     543,430.88     543,430.88                 60,932,530.12     .9%

 
                                           ** END OF REPORT - Generated by Julie Henze **                                           

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

 
MANAGER’S REPORT - B 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 





 
 

 
MANAGER’S REPORT - C 
NO BACK UP MATERIALS 



 
 

MANAGER’S REPORT - D 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



Town of Brunswick, Maine 
	

OFFICE	OF	THE	TOWN	MANAGER	
	

O:\Council\Council	By	Year\Council	2016\Memo	Special	Permit	080816.docx	

MEMORANDUM	
	
TO:	 Town	Council	
	
FROM:	 John	Eldridge	
	 Town	Manager	
	
DATE:	 August	8,	2016	
	
SUBJECT:	 Planning	Board	Special	Permit	Approval	
	 Crystal	Spring	Community	Solar	Farm	(Case	#16‐025)	
	
	
	
The	Town	of	Brunswick’s	Zoning	Ordinance	gives	the	Town	Council	an	opportunity	to	exercise	
jurisdiction	over	the	special	permits	approved	by	the	Planning	Board.		The	Town	Council	must	act	
on	this	opportunity	within	thirty	(30)	days	of	the	Planning	Board’s	approval.	
	
In	this	case,	the	Planning	Board,	at	its	July	26,	2016	meeting,	granted	a	special	permit	that	allows	
Crystal	Spring	Far	to	locate	a	community	solar	array	at	Pleasant	Hill	Road	(Map	21	Lot	16).		
	
If	the	Town	Council	decides	to	exercise	jurisdiction,	it	is	required	to	hold	a	public	hearing.		
Following	the	hearing,	the	Town	Council	may	ratify,	reverse	or	modify	the	decision	of	the	Planning	
Board.		If	the	Town	Council	does	not	exercise	jurisdiction	over	the	Special	Permit	application,	the	
Planning	Board's	decision	will	take	effect	thirty	(30)	days	from	the	date	of	the	Planning	Board’s	
approval.		In	this	case,	should	the	Town	Council	wish	to	exercise	jurisdiction,	it	must	vote	to	do	so	
by	August	25th.	
	
Please	find	a	memo	and	related	attachments	from	Anna	Breinich,	Director	of	Planning	and	
Development.	
	
	
	
	
	
	
Attachments	
	



TOWN OF BRUNSWICK, MAINE 
INCORPORATED 1739 

DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT 
85 UNION STREET 

BRUNSWICK, ME 04011 

ANNA M. BREINICH, FAICP 
DIRECTOR OF PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 

August 8, 2016 

Memo to: 

From: 

Brunswick Town Council 
John Eldridge, Town Manager 

Anna Breinich, F AICP 

PHONE: 207-725-6660 
FAX: 207-725-6663 

Subject: Planning Board Special Permit Approval: Crystal Spring Community Solar Farm (Case 
#16-025) 

On July 26, 2016, the Planning Board voted unanimously of those present to approve a Special Permit 
application submitted by authorized representatives for Crystal Spring Farm, for the proposed 
development of a community solar farm for renewable energy use which is an omitted use from 
Brunswick's Zoning Ordinance. A Special Permit is required for this use. The proposed use is at a parcel 
located at Pleasant Hill Road within the Coastal Protection 1 (CPI) Zoning District (Assessor's Map 21, 
Lot 16). 

Section 701.1.G of the Zoning Ordinance gives the Town Council 30-days from the day the Planning 
Board approves the Special Permit to exercise jurisdiction over the application. If the Council decides to 
exercise jurisdiction by a majority vote of the Council at a public meeting, it shall hold a public hearing 
and may ratify, reverse or modify the decision of the Planning Board. If the Council does not decide to 
exercise jurisdiction over the Special Permit application, the Planning Board's decision will take effect 
after 30-days from the date of approval. 

Attached to this memo are the Special Permit Findings of Fact approved by the Planning Board on July 
26, 2016. 

Sincerely, 

~J~ 
Anna M. Breinich, F AICP 
Director of Planning and Development 

cc: Charlie Frizzle, Chair, Planning Board 
Jeff Hutchinson, Code Enforcement Officer 
Jared Woolston, Planner 



A. The application shall further the planning goals of the Planning Area in which the 
property is located, as follows: 

C.2 Coastal Protection Areas (2008 Comprehensive Plan) 

A. The areas designated Coastal Protection include the areas that are 
generally tributary to Maquoit Bay, Mere Point Bay, and Middle Bay as 
well as the areas adjacent to the New Meadows River south of Route 1 
that were previously designated as Farm and Forest excluding the area 
currently in the Medical Use Overlay Zone (see Land Use Map). 

B. Appropriate land use include rural and natural resource based uses including 
agriculture, forestry, and marine activities; marine and water-dependent 
uses; rural businesses that support or are based on rural and natural 
resource-based uses; single and two-family homes; small-scale 
multifamily housing in areas that are not adjacent to the coast; and low
intensity non-residential uses and businesses. 

C. A major focus of the development standards in the Coastal Protection 
areas should be to protect the water quality in the coastal bays as well as 
assuring that any development or intensive use maintains the "rural 
character" and protects natural and scenic resources. 

This Special Permit application is consistent with and furthers the planning area goals with the 
proposed community solar array within an existing agricultural field The proposed development 
includes a new vegetated buffer to mitigate any unintended impacts to the character of the rural 
setting along the north side of the proposed solar array. The applicant provided narrative 
supporting ieformation detailing the proposed use is intended to reduce atmospheric carbon for 
the protection of the environment, specifically, the natural resources within the Coastal 
Protection Area. Further, the proposed development avoids the mapped Natural Resource 
Protection Zone (NRPZ). 

The Planning Board.finds the proposed use furthers the planning goals of Coastal Protection 
Area. 

B. The application is compatible in scale to its surroundings. In making this finding, the 
Planning Board shall consider the size and mass of buildings where new structures are 
being proposed, the number of employees, residents or customers, and the size and 
number of vehicles servicing the use. Notwithstanding the foregoing, when the Special 
Permit is proposed for a pre-existing structure, the Planning Board may find that the 
proposed use is compatible with its surroundings, even though it is out of scale and 
design with such surrounding properties if the applicant can demonstrate that the 
proposal will achieve mutual benefits without compromising any of the standards found 
in this ordinance. 

The applicant proses to install a solar array that employs eight (8) people during construction. 
Upon completion of all construction activities, the proposed use will be managed by the Crystal 
Spring Farm Community Solar Association. The site of the proposed use is within an 
approximately 44 acre lot that is primarily used for agriculture.fields. The proposed use is 

2 



.. 

approximately I 2,250 square feet which is a small fraction of the lot. Each solar array structure 
will be approximately ten (I 0) feet tall. The full build-out is somewhat out of scale with the 
surrounding residential and rural setting; however, the proposed development sufficiently 
mitigates the scale of the proposed array with a new vegetated buffer. 

The Planning Board finds that the use is compatible with the scale of surrounding development 
provided a planting plan that details the size, and type of plants in the proposed vegetated buffer 
is reviewed and approved by the Director of Planning and Development. 

C. The application is harmonious in design to its surroundings. In making this finding, the 
Planning Board shall consider building and window proportions, roof-lines, spacing of 
doors and windows, as well as orientation to public streets. 

No new buildings are proposed. The proposed development is well oriented to public streets. 

The Planning Board finds the proposed development is harmonious in design and compatible to 
the surrounding area. 

D. The application further maintains or enhances a pedestrian oriented character in 
planning districts where such character is encouraged. 

The Coastal Protection Area is not a pedestrian-oriented region. This area of town is rural. 

The Planning Board finds that this standard is not applicable because the Coastal Protection 
Area does not encourage pedestrian oriented development. 

E. The application will not violate any standard of this Ordinance. 

The proposed use does not violate any standard in the Zoning Ordinance. 

The Board finds that the application will not violate any standard in the Zoning Ordinance. 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Planning Board shall deny an application for a Special 
Permit if, in its determination, substantive, objective evidence from one or more persons 
entitled to notice is presented that reasonably demonstrates that: 

1. The proposal will adversely affect the enjoyment or use of that person's property 
2. The proposal will devalue such property 

The Planning Board finds that in its determination, the proposal will not adversely affect the 
enjoyment or use of or devalue such property of persons entitled to notice. 

3 



APPROVED Motions 

Motion 1: That the Special Permit application is deemed complete. 

Motion 2: That the Special Permit is approved with the following condition: 

1. That the Board's review and approval does hereby refer to these findings of fact, the 
plans and materials submitted by the applicant and the written and oral comments of the 
applicant, his representatives, reviewing officials, and members of the public as reflected 
in the public record. Any changes to the approved plan not called for in these conditions 
of approval or otherwise approved by the Director of Planning and Development as a 
minor modification shall require a review and approval in accordance with the Brunswick 
Zoning Ordinance. 

2. That prior to issuance of an electrical permit, a planting plan detailing the size and type of 
plants shall be submitted to the satisfaction of the Director of Planning and Development. 

Planning Board Denial of Special Permits 

If the Planning Board denies an application for Special Permit, the Planning Board's decision is 
not subject to any appeal. However, the applicant may apply to the Town Council for a zoning 
amendment as provided for by Section 108 of the Town of Brunswick Zoning Ordinance. 

4 

' . 



 
 

MANAGER’S REPORT - E 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



Town of Brunswick, Maine 
 

OFFICE OF THE TOWN MANAGER 
 

O:\Council\Council By Year\Council 2016\Memo Manager's Report e 80116.docx 

MEMORANDUM 
 
TO: Town Council 
 
FROM: John Eldridge 
 Town Manager 
 
DATE: August 10, 2016 
 
SUBJECT: Town Manager’s Report  item e) 
 for the August 15th  Town Council Meeting 
 
 
 
Attached is a letter from the Chair of the Brunswick-Topsham Bridge Design Advisory Committee 
thanking the Town Council for appointing Brunswick representatives to the DAC, and the list of 
members appointed to the DAC. 
 
 
 
Attachments 





 

Frank	Wood	Bridge		DAC	Brusnwick.docx	

Frank	Wood	Bridge	
Design	Advisory	Committee	
Brunswick	Representatives	

	
	
	
Village	Review	Board	 	 	 	 Gary	Massanek,	Chair	
Planning	Board		 	 	 	 Sande	Updegraph,	Board	member	
Brunswick	Downtown	Association	 	 Deb	King,	Ex.	Director	
Brunswick	Public	Art	 	 	 	 Natasha	Goldman,	Board	member	
Bike‐Ped	Advisory	Committee		 	 Will	Wilkoff,	Co‐Chair	
Master	Plan	Implementation	Committee	 Margo	Knight,	Chair	
Recreation	Commission		 	 	 Mike	Lyne,	Vice	Chair	
Brunswick	Development	Corporation	 	 Larisa	Darcy,	President	



 
 

 
MANAGER’S REPORT - F 
NO BACK UP MATERIALS 



MEMORANDUM	
	
TO:	 Town	Council	
	
FROM:	 Sarah	Brayman,	Kathy	Wilson,	and	Jane	Millett	
	 Human	Rights	Task	Force	
	
DATE:	 August	11,	2016	
	
SUBJECT:	 Task	Force	Report,	Findings,	and	Recommendations	
	
	
	
The	Human	Rights	Task	Force	(“Task	Force”)	presents	this	report	summarizing	its	findings	and	
recommendations	resulting	from	its	review	of	incidents,	reports,	or	perceptions	of	bias	and	
discrimination	in	Brunswick.		This	report	was	prepared	in	response	to	the	Town	Council’s	order	
that	established	the	Task	Force	and	defined	its	assignment.1	
	
Background	
	
In	the	late	summer	and	fall	of	2015,	in	meetings	with	representatives	from	Bowdoin	College,	
members	of	the	Town	Council	and	staff	were	advised	of	a	perceived	increase	in	the	use	of	racial	and	
gender‐based	slurs	in	and	around	downtown.		In	response,	the	Town	assembled	a	round‐table	of	
community	leaders	to	discuss	the	perception	and	to	determine	the	breadth	of	this	concern.		As	a	
result	of	the	meetings	and	round‐table,	the	Town	Council	established	the	Human	Rights	Task	Force	
and	directed	it	to	“…explore	the	increase	in	the	reported	use	of	race	and	gender	slurs….”		The	Town	
Council	further	ordered	the	Task	Force	to	examine	bias	directed	against	all	protected	classes	listed	
in	the	Maine	Human	Rights	Act.2	
	
The	Town	Council	directive	specified	that	the	Task	Force’s	examination	focus	on	incidents	
occurring	in	the	downtown	and	the	areas	surrounding	it.		However,	due	to	the	nature	of	the	issues	
under	consideration,	the	Task	Force	found	it	difficult,	and	at	times	inappropriate,	to	limit	the	focus	
to	this	geographic	area.		The	Task	Force	determined	that	its	efforts	would	be	better	served	by	
allowing	the	focus	to	shift	as	circumstances	warranted.		That	is,	the	Task	Force	put	the	goals	of	its	
mission	ahead	of	artificial	limitations.	
	
Composition	of	the	Task	Force	
	
As	established,	the	Task	Force	was	comprised	of	three	Council	members.		At	its	initial	meetings,	the	
Task	Force	considered	including	additional	members,	but	given	the	limited	time		given	to	complete	
its	work,	decided	to	keep	the	membership	at	three	Councilors		Recognizing	the	need	for	public	
input,	the	Task	Force	made	several	outreach	efforts	to	various	community	organizations	and	
actively	encouraged	public	participation	in	its	work.	
	
Derek	Scapchansky,	Assistant	Town	Manager,	and	Debra	Blum,	Executive	Administrative	Assistant,	
served	as	the	primary	staff	for	the	Task	Force.		Other	staff	members	who	regularly	attended	

																																																													
1	Human	Rights	Task	Force,	Established	by	Town	Council,	December	21,	2015	
2	Maine	Revised	Statutes,	Chapter	337	Human	Rights	Act	



Report	of	the	Human	Rights	Task	Force	
August	11,	2016	
	

2	
	

meetings	included:	
	

 Richard	Rizzo,	Brunswick	Police	Chief	
 Pender	Makin,	Assistant	Superintendent	of	the	Brunswick	School	Department,		

	
Others	who	frequently	attended	Task	Force	meetings	included:	
	

 Debora	King,	Executive	Director,	Brunswick	Downtown	Association	
 Curt	Dale	Clark,	Artistic	Director,	Maine	State	Music	Theater	
 Leana	Amáez,	Associate	Dean	of	Students	for	Diversity	and	Inclusion,	Bowdoin	College	

	
Debora	King	represented	the	Brunswick	Downtown	Association	(“BDA”),	and	brought	the	
observations	and	perspective	of	that	association.		Curt	Dale	Clark	represented	Maine	State	Music	
Theater,	an	organization	that	brings	a	very	diverse	cast	and	crew	to	Brunswick	during	its	
productions.		Leana	Amáez	represented	Bowdoin	College,	clearly	a	very	diverse	community	and	an	
institution	that	has	discussed	many	of	the	issues	of	concern	to	the	Task	Force.		Ms.	Amáez	gave	a	
monthly	update	of	bias	incidents	and	related	activities	on	and	off	campus	that	impacted	students	
and	College	staff.			
	
Meetings	and	Methodology	of	the	Task	Force		
	
The	Task	Force	conducted	its	first	meeting	in	January,	an	organizational	meeting,	and	then	met	six	
times	over	the	following	six	months.		Three	of	the	meetings	were	conducted	as	round‐table	
discussions	with	civic	organizations.		The	first	round‐table	was	conducted	with	groups	that	are	
headquartered	in	downtown	and	that	historically	have	had	the	closest	organizational	and	financial	
ties	to	Town	government.		The	second	round‐table	was	held	with	groups	and	social	service	
organizations	deemed	to	be	actively	engaged	in	or	aware	of	issues	of	bias	and	which	had	a	strong	
presence	in	the	downtown	area.		The	third	round‐table	included	leaders	from	downtown	churches.	
	
Each	of	the	round‐table	discussions	provided	opportunities	to	gather	information,	learn	about	
community	activities	and	perceptions,	and	talk	openly	about	instances	of	bias,	if	and	where	they	
exist.		The	discussions	began	with	a	brief	description	of	how	and	why	the	Task	Force	was	formed.		
Each	session	was	loosely	structured	around	the	following	set	of	questions:	
	

 How	does	your	organization	address	human	rights	issues?	
 Is	your	organization,	and	the	population	you	serve,	experiencing	bias	incidents?	
 What	have	you	done	to	address	bias	incidents,	or	attitudes,	and	human	rights	issues?	
 Are	there	other	bias	issues	that	concern	you	in	Brunswick?	
 What	would	you	like	to	see	done	to	address	issues	related	to	bias?	
 What	suggestions	do	you	have	for	moving	forward?	

	
The	Task	Force	approached	issues	in	an	open‐ended	fashion,	letting	conversations	unfold	which	
took	the	Task	Force	into	new	areas.		Participants	were	encouraged	to	attend	additional	meetings.		
Feedback	about	the	round‐table	discussions	was	overwhelmingly	positive.		For	many	participants,	
this	was	the	first	time	they	had	been	able	to	sit	down	with	Town	Councilors	and	directly	discuss	
their	concerns.		Several	participants	said	there	had	never	been	an	opportunity	to	have	this	type	of	
conversation.	
	
	 	



Report	of	the	Human	Rights	Task	Force	
August	11,	2016	
	

3	
	

Given	the	close	proximity	of	the	campus	to	downtown,	Bowdoin	College	has	been,	and	continues	to	
be,	an	integral	part	of	the	community	fabric.		The	College	and	its	members	have	long	regarded	
Brunswick	as	an	inviting	and	welcoming	community.		Because	the	College	represents	such	a	large	
and	diverse	community	within	Brunswick,	the	Task	Force	was	attentive	to	its	concerns.		The	Task	
Force	discussed	with	Bowdoin	officials	the	policies	and	procedures	the	College	uses	in	reporting	
and	combatting	bias	incidents.		It	also	explored	how	the	College	and	the	Town	might	better	
coordinate	and	cooperate	on	issues	of	mutual	concern.		The	Task	Force	had	hoped	to	talk	directly	
with	Bowdoin	students	but	circumstances	did	not	allow	for	this	opportunity.		The	history	of	town‐
gown	relationships	and	interactions	was	discussed	from	various	perspectives.	
	
Actions	Resulting	from	the	Task	Force’s	Efforts	
	
As	suggested	in	the	Council’s	directive	establishing	the	Task	Force,	the	Brunswick	Police	
Department	created	an	online	bias	reporting	web	page	to	facilitate	the	reporting	of	any	bias	
incidents	occurring	in	Brunswick.3		Community	feedback	about	this	new	reporting	mechanism	was	
very	positive.		Many	urged	the	Department	to	continue	working	to	publicize	its	availability.			
Chief	Richard	Rizzo	provided	the	Task	Force	with	monthly	updates	on	instances	of	bias	reported	to	
the	Police	Department.		To	date,	two	bias	incidents	were	reported	via	the	web	page,	but	neither	was	
actionable.		Four	additional	incidents	were	reported	to	the	Police	Department	via	other	means	
between	January	1	and	June	30.	
	
Findings	of	the	Task	Force	
	
While	there	is	some	anecdotal	and	testimonial	evidence	of	bias	incidents	occurring	in	Brunswick,	
the	Task	Force	was	not	presented	with	evidence	of	widespread	bias.		The	incidents	reviewed	by	the	
Task	Force	appeared	to	be	isolated,	individual	acts.		This	is	not	to	say	that	Brunswick,	like	most	
communities,	could	not	benefit	from	a	robust	discussion	of	bias	and	its	effect	on	those	subjected	to	
the	hurt,	humiliation,	and	fear	that	it	can	cause.		Moreover,	comments	frequently	heard	at	the	
round‐tables	highlighted	how	changing	demographics	and	socioeconomic	status	might	be	
influencing	or	fueling	the	perception	of	bias.			
	
Recommendations	
	
While	appreciating	that	exploring	the	causes	and	effects	of	bias	and	discrimination	could	be	a	
never‐ending	task,	the	Task	Force	nonetheless	believes	that	the	community	could	benefit	by	
continuing	the	dialogue	it	has	started	by	encouraging	others	join	the	conversation.		Therefore,	the	
Task	Force	recommends	that	the	Town	Council	authorize	it	to	continue	working	through	the	end	of	
the	year.		Activities	that	the	Task	Force	would	undertake	during	the	ensuing	months	include:	
	

 Further	explore	bias	concerns	by	continuing	monthly	round‐table	discussions.		Due	to	time	
constraints,	the	Task	Force	was	not	able	to	meet	with	all	organizations	that	could	provide	
insight	into	the	environment	of	bias	in	Brunswick	and	the	many	positive	activities	that	are	
being	done	to	continue	making	Brunswick	welcoming	to	all.		Organizations	or	groups	that	
could	be	invited	to	future	round‐tables	include:	Volunteers	of	America,	Big	Brothers/Big	
Sisters,	Sexual	Assault	Support	Services	of	Midcoast	Maine	(SASSMM),	LGBTQ	advocates	
and	additional	churches.		Not	only	would	these	discussions	provide	additional	information,	
they	would	also	further	foster	the	sense	of	community	that	develops	from	these	
conversations.		

																																																													
3	http://www.brunswickme.org/departments/police/police‐department/bias‐incident‐reporting/	



Report	of	the	Human	Rights	Task	Force	
August	11,	2016	
	

4	
	

 Encourage	continued	and	improved	information	sharing	between	Bowdoin	College	and	the	
Town	through	various	traditional	methods	and	electronic	media	platforms.			

 Continue	efforts	to	communicate	with	Bowdoin	students,	staff,	and	faculty	to	directly	
discuss	their	Brunswick	experiences	and	to	determine	what	additional	actions	could	be	
taken	that	would	continue	to	demonstrate	that	Brunswick	is	welcoming	to	all.	

 Further	publicize	the	Police	Department’s	bias	incident	reporting	webpage	and	other	
reporting	venues,	and	encourage	community	buy‐in	and	participation.		Incidents	may	
increase	during	certain	months	so	it	is	important	to	continue	data	collection	in	order	to	
examine	year	over	year	patterns	or	trends.	

 Encourage	service	organizations	to	establish	a	community	webpage	focused	on	issues	of	
bias.		Such	a	webpage	should	include	a	calendar	of	events,	and	the	Town’s	website	should	
include	links	to	the	site.			

 Encourage	the	organization	of	a	community	event	where	organizations	would	be	available	
to	spread	the	word	about	the	work	that	is	being	done	in	Brunswick.		It	should	be	
acknowledged	that	Brunswick	has	a	host	of	agencies	and	volunteers	who	help	make	
Brunswick	a	special,	inclusive,	and	welcoming	community.		Brunswick	should	continue	to	
promote	its	very	positive	reputation.	

 Invite	our	state	legislators	to	participate	in	a	workshop	for	the	Town	Council	and	the	public	
about	current	trends	and	actions	related	to	human	rights	issues	at	the	state	level.	

 Continue	to	consider	the	establishment	of	safe	houses	and	the	training	of	staff	in	their	
operation.	

	
Acknowledgments	
	
Members	of	the	Task	Force	heard	from	many	members	of	the	public	over	the	course	of	the	past	six	
months,	the	overwhelming	majority	of	whom	were	comforted	to	know	that	the	Town	was	“willing	
to	be	aware”	of	bias	issues	in	the	community,	even	if	there	is	no	clear	cut	role	for	municipal	
government	in	addressing	such	issues.		
	
The	Task	Force	would	like	to	acknowledge	the	organizations	that	participated	in	its	study.		Those	
organizations	provided	helpful	insights	and	are	a	large	part	of	the	reason	Brunswick	remains	a	
welcoming	community.		The	Task	Force	also	recognizes	the	Town	Council	for	having	the	courage	to	
tackle	the	issue	of	bias	and	for	its	continuing	efforts	to	sustain	Brunswick	as	a	livable,	welcoming	
community.	
	
	
	



Town	of	Brunswick,	Maine	
Human	Rights	Task	Force	

	
Background.		In	August	of	2015,	members	of	the	Town	Council	were	told	of	an	increase	in	the	
number	of	reported	incidents	of	the	use	of	racial	and	gender‐based	slurs	in	and	around	downtown	
Brunswick.		The	Chair	and	Vice	Chair	of	the	Town	Council,	along	with	staff	from	the	Town	of	
Brunswick,	met	with	officials	of	Bowdoin	College	to	discuss	the	concern.		On	December	2nd,	a	
roundtable	of	community	leaders	was	invited	to	participate	in	a	discussion	of	these	matters.		In	
addition	to	the	race	and	gender	issues,	participants	at	the	roundtable	also	discussed	two	recently	
reported	assaults	and	general	safety	concerns	for	downtown.	The	discussion	concluded	with	
suggestions	for	potential	next	steps	to	address	these	issues.	
	
At	its	December	21,	2015	meeting	the	Town	Council	discussed	the	creation	of	a	task	force	to	focus	
on	race	and	gender	bias.		The	Council	also	adopted	a	resolution	re‐stating	its	opposition	to	
discrimination,	particularly	as	it	relates	to	those	in	protected	classes	as	defined	by	the	Maine	
Human	Rights	Act.	
	
The	Town	Council	hereby	establishes	a	Human	Rights	Task	Force.		The	efforts	of	the	task	force	shall	
focus	on	race	and	gender	bias.		Further,	the	task	force	shall	recommend	how	the	Town	and	other	
civic	organizations	might	be	engaged	to	address	these	issues.		
	
Members.		The	task	force	shall	be	comprised	of	the	following	members:	
	

 Three	(3)	members	of	the	Town	Council	as	chosen	by	the	Council	chair.	
	
Task	Force	Charge.		Explore	the	increase	in	the	reported	use	of	race	and	gender	slurs	in	and	near	
downtown	Brunswick.		At	a	minimum,	the	task	force	should	consider	the	following:	
	

 Town	hall	and	neighborhood	group	conversations	
 Involvement	of	the	Brunswick	Downtown	Association	and	other	community	organizations	

as	determined	by	the	task	force	to	develop	recommendations	for	the	Town	and	other	
stakeholders	

 Development	of	reporting	mechanisms	to	ensure	that	incidents	of	bias	are	reported	and	
documented		

 Community	dialogue	through	newspapers,	publications,	websites,	and	social	media	
 Establishment	of	safe	houses	

	
The	task	force	shall	prepare	and	deliver	a	report	with	its	recommendations	to	the	Town	Council	as	
soon	as	possible,	but	no	later	than	June	30,	2016.	
	
Staff.		The	task	force	shall	be	staffed	by	the	Assistant	Town	Manager	who	shall	be	responsible	to	
provide	for	the	administration	of	the	affairs	of	the	task	force,	including	preparing	agendas	and	
minutes,	posting	public	hearings,	handling	correspondence,	and	maintaining	all	official	records.	
	
Funding.		The	activities	of	the	task	force	shall	be	funded	from	the	Town	Council’s	appropriation.	
	
	
Proposed	to	Town	Council:		December	21,	2015	
Adopted	by	Town	Council:		December	21,	2015	



Town	of	Brunswick,	Maine	
	

Resolution	Against	Harassment	and	Discrimination	
	
	
Whereas,	the	Town	Council	of	the	Town	of	Brunswick	is	aware	of	incidents	of	harassment	and	
abusive	conduct	directed	towards	members	of	the	public	and	based	on	the	race	or	gender	of	those	
individuals;	and	
	
Whereas,	the	Town	Council	of	the	Town	of	Brunswick	takes	notice	of	an	increase	in	public	
discourse	of	derogatory	comments	made	against	individuals	and	groups	of	individuals	protected	
under	the	Maine	Human	Rights	act;	and	
	
Whereas,	the	Town	Council	of	Brunswick	wishes	to	express	in	the	strongest	terms	its	opposition	
to	any	harassment,	abuse,	derogatory	comments,	and	discrimination	against	individuals	and	
groups	of	individuals	protected	under	the	Maine	Human	Rights	Act;	
	
Now	Therefore,	be	it	Resolved	by	the	Brunswick	Town	Council,	that	it	is	the	policy	of	the	Town	
of	Brunswick	that	harassment,	abuse,	derogatory	comments,	and	discrimination	directed	towards	
individuals	or	groups	of	individuals	protected	under	the	Maine	Human	Rights	Act	are	incompatible	
with	the	welcoming	and	inclusive	character	of	the	Town	of	Brunswick.	
	
	
Proposed	to	Town	Council:		December	21,	2015	
Adopted	by	Town	Council:			December	21,	2015	
	



Human Rights Task Force 
 
 
Community Guests:   
 
January 27, 2016 Leana Amáez, Associate Dean of Students for Diversity and Inclusion at 

Bowdoin College  
  Meg Robbins, Bowdoin Orient  
 
 
February 18, 2016 Debora King, Brunswick Downtown Association  
  Curt Dale Clark, Artistic Director, Maine State Music Theater 
  Paul Perzanoski, Superintendent of Schools, Brunswick School Department 
  Liz Doucett, Curtis Memorial Library 
  Pender Makin, Assistant Superintendent, Brunswick School Department 
  Leana Amáez, Associate Dean of Students for Diversity and Inclusion at 

Bowdoin College  
 
 
April 29, 2016  Debora King, Brunswick Downtown Association  
  Curt Dale Clark, Artistic Director, Maine State Music Theater 
  Craig Phillips, Executive Director, Tedford Shelter  
  Andreé Appel, Clinical Director, Oasis Free Clinics  
  Anita Ruff, Executive Director, Oasis Free Clinics  
  Karen Parker, Executive Director Mid Coast Hunger Prevention Program  
  Stacy Frizzle, Executive Director of People Plus and Teen Center  
  Chick Carroll, President of the Gathering Place 
  Leslie Mulhearn, Sweetser 
  Leana Amáez, Associate Dean of Students for Diversity and Inclusion at 

Bowdoin College  
 
      
   
June 3, 2016 Reverend Carolyn Eklund, St. Paul’s Church  
  Reverend Mary Baard, First Parish UCC  
  Pastor Mark Rockwood, Berean Baptist Church  
  Reverend Richard Fisco, Church of Scientology  
  Pender Makin, Assistant Superintendent, Brunswick School Department  
 
	



	
Maine Revised Statutes	

Title 5: ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEDURES AND SERVICES	

Chapter 337: HUMAN RIGHTS ACT	

§4552. POLICY	
	

To protect the public health, safety and welfare, it is declared to be the policy of this State to keep continually 
in review all practices infringing on the basic human right to a life with dignity, and the causes of these practices, so 
that corrective measures may, where possible, be promptly recommended and implemented, and to prevent 
discrimination in employment, housing or access to public accommodations on account of race, color, sex, sexual 
orientation, physical or mental disability, religion, ancestry or national origin; and in employment, discrimination on 
account of age or because of the previous assertion of a claim or right under former Title 39 or Title 39-A and in 
housing because of familial status; and to prevent discrimination in the extension of credit on account of age, race, 
color, sex, sexual orientation, marital status, religion, ancestry or national origin; and to prevent discrimination in 
education on account of sex, sexual orientation or physical or mental disability. [2005, c. 10, §1 (AMD).]	

SECTION HISTORY	
1971, c. 501, §1 (NEW).  1973, c. 347, §1 (AMD).  1973, c. 705, §1 (AMD).  
1975, c. 355, §1 (AMD).  1975, c. 358, §1 (AMD).  1975, c. 770, §28 (RPR).  
1987, c. 478, §1 (AMD).  1989, c. 245, §1 (AMD).  1991, c. 99, §1 (AMD).  
1993, c. 327, §1 (AMD).  2005, c. 10, §1 (AMD).	

The State of Maine claims a copyright in its codified statutes. If you intend to republish this material, we require that you include 
the following disclaimer in your publication:	
All copyrights and other rights to statutory text are reserved by the State of Maine. The text included in this publication reflects 
changes made through the First Regular Session of the 127th Maine Legislature and is current through October 15, 2015. The 
text is subject to change without notice. It is a version that has not been officially certified by the Secretary of State. Refer to the 
Maine Revised Statutes Annotated and supplements for certified text.	
The Office of the Revisor of Statutes also requests that you send us one copy of any statutory publication you may produce. Our 
goal is not to restrict publishing activity, but to keep track of who is publishing what, to identify any needless duplication and to 
preserve the State's copyright rights.	
PLEASE NOTE: The Revisor's Office cannot perform research for or provide legal advice or interpretation of Maine law to the 
public. If you need legal assistance, please contact a qualified attorney. 

	

	



ITEM 92
BACK UP MATERIALS 











ITEM 93
BACK UP MATERIALS 



Town of Brunswick, Maine 
	

OFFICE	OF	THE	TOWN	MANAGER	
	

O:\Council\Council	By	Year\Council	2016\Memo	Mere	Point	Wastewater	Fees	072616.docx	

MEMORANDUM	
	
TO:	 Town	Council	
	
FROM:	 John	Eldridge	
	 Town	Manager	
	
DATE:	 July	26,	2016	
	
SUBJECT:	 Mere	Point	Wastewater	District	
	 Proposed	Fee	Increases		
	
	
In	the	early	1990’s	the	Town	of	Brunswick,	along	with	support	from	the	Maine	Department	of	
Environmental	Protection	(“MDEP”)	and	the	property	owners	of	year‐round	and	seasonal	
residences	on	Mere	Point,	funded	a	project	that	removed	overboard	wastewater	discharges,	
constructed	community	septic	systems,	and	established	a	wastewater	utility	district	to	fund	the	
operation	of	the	systems.		The	Town	began	billing	property	owners	for	system	maintenance	and	
operation	beginning	in	July	1995.		Since	establishing	the	district,	the	rates	paid	by	the	users	of	the	
system	have	remained	unchanged.		Not	surprisingly,	maintenance	costs	have	increased	over	the	
past	twenty‐one	years.		Further,	components	of	the	system	have	required,	and	continue	to	require,	
maintenance	and	replacement.		Last	year	one	of	the	peat	fields	failed,	requiring	replacement	at	a	
cost	of	more	than	$40,000.		Although	the	Mere	Point	Wastewater	District	has	consistently	
experienced	operating	losses,	the	cost	of	the	replacement	created	an	overall	fund	deficit.	
	
Because	of	the	deficit,	the	on‐going	operating	losses,	and	the	need	to	establish	a	reserve	for	future	
capital	improvements,	the	Town	undertook	an	evaluation	of	the	existing	rates.		The	Finance	and	
Public	Works	Departments	collaborated	in	developing	recommended	rate	increases.		The	proposed	
increases	were	provided	to	the	system	users	and	discussed	by	the	Finance	Committee	at	its	July	
23rd		meeting.		We	understand	the	system	users	discussed	the	rate	increase	at	a	meeting	they	held	
earlier	in	July.		The	Finance	Committee	voted	to	support	the	rate	increases.		The	package	of	
information	and	recommendations	reviewed	by	the	Finance	Committee	is	attached.			
	
Since	the	rates	are	established	by	ordinance,	we	recommend	that	the	Town	Council	set	a	public	
hearing	for	August	15th	in	order	to	consider	the	proposed	rate	increases.		If	approved,	the	rate	
increases	would	be	effective	for	the	next	quarterly	billing.	
	
It	should	be	noted	that	the	Finance	Committee	and	Town	staff	also	discussed	other	issues	relating	
to	the	operation	and	maintenance	of	the	system.		Among	those	is	the	need	to	explore	constructing	a	
connection	between	a	holding	tank	on	Webb	Field	Road	and	the	septic	field	that	was	designed	to	
treat		water	being	generated	at	four	residences	on	that	road.		Currently	the	holding	tank	is	pumped	
regularly.		That	pumping	consumes	a	significant	portion	of	the	District’s	operating	budget.		
Connecting	the	tank	to	the	field	designed	to	serve	it	comes	at	a	cost,	but	would	reduce	the	cost	of	
regular	pumping	of	the	holding	tank.	
	
We	look	forward	to	discussing	the	proposed	increases	with	the	Town	Council	as	it	considers	our	
recommendation.	
	
Attachments	



	

	

MEMORANDUM	
	
	
TO:	 John	Eldridge	
	 Town	Manager		
	
FROM:	 Julie	Henze,	Finance	Director	
	 John	Foster,	Public	Works	Director	
	
DATE:	 July	22,	2016	
	
SUBJECT:	 Update	of	Mere	Point	Wastewater	District	Fees	
	
	
	
The	Mere	Point	Wastewater	District	was	built	by	the	Town	in	1992‐1993.		The	user	fees	have	not	
been	updated	since	that	time.		The	Town	of	Brunswick	Code	of	Ordinances,	Chapter	16,	Article	III.	‐
Sewer	Use;	In‐Ground	Sewage	Treatment	Systems	was	adopted	by	the	Town	Council	in	July	1993.		
The	fees	were	referred	to,	but	no	rates	were	specified	in	the	Ordinance.			
	
Beginning	in	the	fall	of	2015,	staff	has	undertaken	an	analysis	of	the	Town	of	Brunswick’s	user	fees	for	
the	District.		It	is	clear	that	the	existing	fees	are	no	longer	sufficient	to	cover	the	costs	associated	with	
operating	the	system,	and	a	failure	of	one	of	the	leach	fields	in	August	2015	also	make	it	clear	that	the	
Town	should	build	up	a	capital	reserve	to	maintain	the	aging	infrastructure.		Through	the	spring	and	
early	summer,	we	have	been	in	communication	with	the	users	of	the	system,	and	have	notified	them	
that	a	rate	increase	is	necessary.		We	are	presenting	this	item	for	consideration	by	the	Council	during	
the	summer	months	while	the	majority	of	the	affected	residents	are	in	town.	
	
At	this	time,	we	propose	that	the	rates	be	increased,	and	that	the	ordinance	be	amended	to	list	the	
Sewage	Treatment	rates	within	Appendix	B,	Master	Schedule	of	Revenues,	Charges,	Fees	and	Fines.	
	
Attached,	for	your	information	and	discussion,	are	a	number	of	documents:	
	

1. History	and	description	of	the	Mere	Point	Wastewater	Facility,	plus	site	plan	
2. Summary	of	annual	operating	costs	
3. Estimated	annual	operating	expenses	
4. Fee	structure	established	in	1992	
5. Proposed	rate	increase	
6. Proposed	Ordinance	amendment	and	fee	schedule	

	
The	Finance	Committee	met	on	July	21,	2016	and	reviewed	the	proposed	fee	increases.	The	
Committee	heard	from	representatives	of	the	Sewer	District	as	well	as	from	a	Mere	Point	resident.			
There	was	extended	discussion	about	whether	the	fees	proposed	were	high	enough	to	fund	adequate	
capital	reserves	for	the	district,	but	a	majority	of	the	Finance	Committee	agreed	to	recommend	the	
currently	proposed	fees	to	the	Council.				The	Committee	also	recommends	regular	annual	review,	and	
update	of	the	fees	as	needed.	
	
We	propose	to	bring	this	item	to	the	August	1,	2016	Town	Council	meeting	and	request	that	a	public	
hearing	be	set	for	August	15,	2016.			
	
	



Brunswick Public Works Dept 
9 Industry Rd 
BRUNSWICK  ME   04011 
207.725.6654 
 

Memorandum 
 

 TO: Finance Committee   
 

 FROM: John A. Foster, Town Engineer/Dir. PWD  
 

 DATE: 13 July, 2016 
 

 SUBJECT: Brief History & Description of the Mere Point Waster Water Facility 
 

 

The site history for the Town owned waste water facility at Mere Point is as follows: 

Site History: 

The community disposal system was designed in 1991-92 by Kimball-Chase Engineering, Bath, 
Maine.  The project was approved by DEP and was eligible for a DEP (25% share) and EPA (55% 
share) project reimbursement grant (if the system was owned by the town). The project was bid in 
late 1992 and Ray Labbe & Sons, Inc. was awarded the contract and started work over the winter 
and completed the project by approximately June 1993.  The construction cost was $587,642.74.  
Other Finance Department information indicates that EPA/DEP paid $616,000 of the total cost and 
the 33 users paid $94,500 of the total contract cost (construction, engineering, legal, etc.).  All 
unreimbursed project costs were covered by the 33 residential lots being served by the system.  
We do have record drawings for the project as well as a detailed Operation & Maintenance Manual.  
The system operates under a Waste Discharge License issued by DEP and is inspected annually 
by DEP. The Brunswick Sewer District (BSD), under a separate agreement with the Town of 
Brunswick, operates and maintains the system for the town and bills the town for all costs they incur 
in doing the O&M.  The town in turn then sends out quarterly bills to the residents being served to 
cover all the operating and maintenance costs.  The quarterly rates being charged today are the 
same rates developed back in 1992 and they have never been increased. 
 
Infrastructure: 

The system includes the following: 
1. 35 residences on 33 tax lots (22 seasonal and 13 year round per the billings) are served (two 

lots have two separate residence buildings on each lot).  The town system serves 35 of the 57 
residential units in the Sea Point Land Company community.  See the attached aerial site plan. 

2. 9 individual leach fields. One leach field serves only 1 home and the other 8 serve 30 homes 
and 4 homes have no leach field and discharge to a holding tank that has to be emptied 3 to 4 
times per month.  

3. 15 pumping stations located in 12 wet wells and three pumps are located within a septic tank 
(combo). 11 wet wells have 2 pumps each and one wet well has one pump and three pumps 
are located in septic tanks for a total of 26 pumps.  Nine separate electric services/control 
panels are on site to power and operate the pumps. 

4. 29 septic tanks with a total capacity of 33,500 gallons. 
5. One 8,000 gallon holding tank that serves 4 units has to be pumped out approximately 3 to 4 

times per month with the contents brought to the BSD treatment plant for disposal. 
6. The piping serving the system totals about 1,300 feet of 4” and 6” ductile iron sewer for gravity 

drainage, 5,500 feet of 2” diameter force main piping per the DEP permit. 
7. The BSD maintains all the above facilities for the town including the piping back to within 5 

feet of each home served. 

Brunswick Public Works Dept 



 
Intentionally left blank 



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



By John Foster, Town Engineer Print Date: July 13, 2016

2009-2010 2010-2011 2011-2012 2012-2013 2013-2014 2014-2015 2015-2016

Operating Costs

Electricity 1,232$            1,037$            946$               1,167$            1,252$            1,222$            1,324$            

Brunswick Sewer District Contract 26,647$          16,362$          15,132$          17,390$          32,515$          26,198$          20,862$          

Emergency Replace Field #6 -$                -$                -$                -$                -$                46,811$          

Annual Operating Cost 27,879$          17,399$          16,079$          18,556$          33,767$          27,420$          68,997$          

Revenue

Interest Income 1$                   1$                   4$                   4$                   3$                   

Annual Revenue from User Fees 21,533$          21,367$          21,533$          21,670$          21,533$          21,035$          21,913$          

Annual Operating Revenue 21,534$          21,367$          21,534$          21,674$          21,537$          21,038$          21,913$          

Net Revenue/Expenses Balance (6,345)$           3,968$            5,455$            3,117$            (12,230)$         (6,382)$           (47,084)$         

Net Operating Balance

  Prior FY Year Balance:   $  38,643 32,298$          36,266$          41,721$          44,838$          32,608$          26,226$          (20,857)$         

Table 1

July 1 thru June 30

Mere Point Wastewater Account 
Fund No. 6100

Summary of Annual Operating Costs, Revenues and Year End Balance for Prior 7 Fiscal Years

Item
Fiscal Year



By John Foster, Town Engineer Print Date: May 3, 2016

Task / Description Quantity Unit Unit Price
 Total Cost 

for One 
Annual 

Task Cost
 1992 Budget 

for Task 

Septage Pumping and Disposal

Inspection of Septic Tank Volumes & Pumps (4/year)
Employee (2) 7                   hrs 55.64$          389.48$          
Transportation - Utility Truck 3.5                hrs 50.00$          175.00$          
Sub-Total 564.48$          2,257.92$     

Annual Contract to Empty Septic Tanks (5 yr rotating schedule for 29 Septic Tanks)
Contract for Septic Tank Emptying 4,725            gals 0.12$            567.00$          
Septage Charge by BSD for Disposal at Plant 4,725            gals. 0.00795$      37.59$            

604.59$          604.59$        
Total Annual Septage Pumping and Disposal Cost 2,862.51$     1,950.00$         

Holding Tank Pumping & Disposal

Pumping of 8,000 gal. Holding Tank (3 to 4 times per 150,000        gals. 0.055$          8,250.00$       
Septage Charge by BSD for Disposal at Plant 150,000        gals. 0.00795$      1,193.18$       

Total Annual Holding Tank Pumping & Disposal Cost 9,443.18$       9,443.18$     8,319.00$         

Pump Station Electricity
Average Monthly CMP Cost for 9 Metered Services 12                 mo. 120.00$        1,440.00$       

Total Annual Pump Station Electricity Cost 1,440.00$       1,440.00$     300.00$            

Pumping Station Maintenance

Labor Allowance for Replacement of 3 Pumps/Year (26 total pumps in system)
Employee (2) 4                   hrs 55.64$          222.56$          
Transportation - Utility Truck 2                   hrs 50.00$          100.00$          
Transportation - Jet/Vac 1.5                hrs 150.00$        225.00$          
Sub-Total 547.56$          1,642.68$     

Winterize/Restore Seasonal Pump Operation (2/year)
Employee 6                   hrs 55.64$          333.84$          
Transportation - Utility Truck 6                   hrs 50.00$          300.00$          
Sub-Total 633.84$          1,267.68$     

Allowance for Emergency Response for Power Outages/Emergency Pumping (2/year)
Employee (2) 6                   hrs 55.64$          333.84$          
Transportation - Utility Truck 3                   hrs 50.00$          150.00$          
Sub-Total 483.84$          967.68$        

Total Annual Pumping Station Maintenance Cost 3,878.04$     1,300.00$         
Pumping Station Supplies

Pipe and Fittings for Pump Replacement L.S. 300.00$          
Pump 3                   ea. 895.00$        2,685.00$       
Miscellaneous L.S. 200.00$          

Total Annual Pumping Station Maintenance Cost 3,185.00$     960.00$            
Sewer Cleaning

Inspection of Septic Tank Volumes & Pumps (4/year)
Employee (2) 7                   hrs 55.64$          389.48$          
Transportation - Utility Truck 3.5                hrs 50.00$          175.00$          

Total Annual Sewer Cleaning Cost 564.48$          2,257.92$     3,010.00$         
Inspections

Annual Sampling of Drinking Water Wells (Req'd by DEP Permit)
Employee (2) 6  hrs 55.64$          333.84$          
Transportation - Utility Truck 3  hrs 50.00$          150.00$          
Lab Analysis (Maine Env. Lab.) L.S. 1,270.00$       

Total Annual Inspections Cost 1,753.84$       1,753.84$     1,800.00$         
Annual Report (Admin)

Employee to Accompany DEP Inspector (1/year) 3.5                hrs 55.64$          194.74$          
Transportation - Utility Truck 3.5                hrs 50.00$          175.00$          
DEP Annual Wastewater Discharge Fee 435.40$          
DEP MSGP Annual Fee for Permit #MER05B577 300.00$          

Total Annual Inspections Cost 1,105.14$       1,105.14$     1,300.00$         
Sinking Fund

Proposed Annual Sinking Fund Set Aside 9,400.00$     2,300.00$         
Miscellaneous

Miscellaneous costs/materials included in above line items -$             300.00$            

Proposed Annual Operating Budget 35,325.63$   21,539.00$       

Mere Point Waste Water System
Estimated Annual Operating Expenses



Annual Costs 
USER CHARGE CALCULATIONS · 

A . . 

Septage Pumping and Disposal 
Holding Tanlc Pumping & Disp,osal 
Pump Station Electricity 

. Pump Station Maintenance 
Pump Station Supplies 
Sewer Cleaning 
Inspections 
Annual Report (Admin.) 
Sinking Fund 
Misc. 

TOTAL! 
B. User Categories 

c. 
- ... ... 

Number of Customers - 35 
Seasonal 21 
Year Round 14 

Number of Bedrooms - 127 
Seasonal 81 
Year Round - 46 

Equivalent Bedrooms 
Seasonal 81 x 1 = 81 
.Year Round 46 x 2 = .22 

TOTAL 173 

User Charge Calculation 
Fixed Charges: 

$15,069/35 = $431/user 

Variable Charges: 
$6,470/173 = $37 /Equivalent Bedroom 

Average User Charge: 
Year Round = 431 + [37*22] = $674 

14 
Seasonal = 431 + [37*.811 = $574 

21 
D. User Charge Formula 

Tut.al 
$ 1,950 

8,319 
300 

1,300 
960 

3,010 
1,800 
1,300 
2,300 

300 

$21,539 

U.C. = Fixed charge + (variable charge x equiv. bedrooms) 

1 

md 
$ 975 

5,319 
-0-
580 
460 

3,010 
1,125 
1,300 
2,300 

-0-

$15,069 

Variable 
$ 975 
3;000 

300 
720 
500 
-0-
675 
-0-
-0-
300 

$6,470 

--Kiml:xill 
~Chase 

jfoster
Text Box
August 19, 1992



By John Foster, Town Engineer Print Date: May 9, 2016

A. Annual Costs Total Fixed Variable

Septage Pumping and Disposal 2,863$          1,431$            1,431$          
Holding Tank Pumping & Disposal 9,443$          6,443$            3,000$          
Pump Station Electricity 1,440$          -$                1,440$          
Pumping Station Maintenance 3,878$          1,730$            2,148$          
Pumping Station Supplies 3,185$          1,593$            1,593$          
Sewer Cleaning 2,258$          2,258$            -$              
Inspections 1,754$          1,096$            658$             
Annual Report (Admin) 1,105$          1,105$            -$              
Sinking Fund 9,400$          9,400$            -$              
Miscellaneous -$              -$                -$              

Total: 35,326$        25,056$          10,269$        

B. User Categories
Number of Customers 35  ea.

Seasonal 22  ea.
Year Round 13  ea.

Number of Bedrooms 125  bedrooms
Seasonal 75  bedrooms
Year Round 50  bedrooms

Equivalent Bedrooms
Seasonal (75 x 1) 75  equiv. bedrooms
Year Round (50*2) 100  equiv. bedrooms
Total 175  equiv. bedrooms

C. User Charge Calculation

Fixed Charges $25,056 / 35 716$             / User
Variable Charges:   $10,269/175 58$               / Equivalent Bedroom

Average User Charge
Year Round = $716 + ($58 x 100) / 13 1,163$         
Seasonal = $716 + ($58 x 75) / 22 914$            

D. User Charge Formula
  U.C. = Fixed Charge  +  (variable charge x equiv. bedrooms)

Projected Annual Revenue Based on Draft Budget
Year Round Properties 13  ea. 716$             9,308$            
Year Round Number of Bedrooms 50  ea. 116$             5,800$            
Seasonal Properties 22  ea. 716$             15,752$          
Seasonal Number of Bedrooms 75  ea. 58$               4,350$            
Total Revenue 35,210$          

Current Annual Revenue
Year Round Properties 13  ea. 435$             5,655$            
Year Round Number of Bedrooms 50  ea. 76$               3,800$            
Seasonal Properties 22  ea. 435$             9,570$            
Seasonal Number of Bedrooms 75  ea. 38$               2,850$            
Total Revenue 21,875$          

Budget Increase 13,335$          
Percent Budget Increase 61%

User Charge Calculations 
(for Comparison with 1992 Calculations)

Mere Point Waste Water System

D R A F T



By John Foster, Town Engineer Print Date: July 12, 2016

No. MAP/LOT TYPE
Existing 
Quarterly 
Amt Billed

Existing 
Annual Amt. 

Billed

Proposed
Quarterly
Amt Billed

Proposed
Annual

Amt Billed

1     MP1-006 Year Rnd 3 165.75$          663.00$          266.00$         1,064.00$      

2     MP1-007 Seasonal 3 137.25$          549.00$          222.50$         890.00$         

3     MP1-008 Seasonal 4 146.75$          587.00$          237.00$         948.00$         

4     MP1-009 Seasonal 4 146.75$          587.00$          237.00$         948.00$         

5     MP1-010 Year Rnd 6 222.75$          891.00$          353.00$         1,412.00$      

6     Year Rnd 1 127.75$          511.00$          208.00$         832.00$         

7     MP1-020 Year Rnd 4 184.75$          739.00$          295.00$         1,180.00$      

8     MP1-020-A Year Rnd 3 165.75$          663.00$          266.00$         1,064.00$      

9     MP1-022 Seasonal 3 137.25$          549.00$          222.50$         890.00$         

10     MP1-025 Seasonal 4 146.75$          587.00$          237.00$         948.00$         

11     MP1-026 Seasonal 4 146.75$          587.00$          237.00$         948.00$         

12     MP1-027 Year Rnd 3 165.75$          663.00$          266.00$         1,064.00$      

13     MP1-028 Year Rnd 5 203.75$          815.00$          324.00$         1,296.00$      

14     MP1-036 Seasonal 1 118.25$          473.00$          193.50$         774.00$         

15     MP1-075 Seasonal 4 146.75$          587.00$          237.00$         948.00$         

16     MP1-076 Year Rnd 4 184.75$          739.00$          295.00$         1,180.00$      

17     MP1-077 Seasonal 4 146.75$          587.00$          237.00$         948.00$         

18     MP1-078 Seasonal 3 137.25$          549.00$          222.50$         890.00$         

19     Seasonal 1 118.25$          473.00$          193.50$         774.00$         

20     MP1-080 Seasonal 3 137.25$          549.00$          222.50$         890.00$         

21     MP1-088 Year Rnd 8 260.75$          1,043.00$       411.00$         1,644.00$      

22     MP1-090 Seasonal 4 146.75$          587.00$          237.00$         948.00$         

23     MP1-091 Seasonal 3 137.25$          549.00$          222.50$         890.00$         

24     MP1-092 Seasonal 4 146.75$          587.00$          237.00$         948.00$         

25     MP1-093 Seasonal 3 137.25$          549.00$          222.50$         890.00$         

26     MP1-096 Seasonal 4 146.75$          587.00$          237.00$         948.00$         

27     MP1-097 Seasonal 4 146.75$          587.00$          237.00$         948.00$         

28     MP1-107 Seasonal 5 156.25$          625.00$          251.50$         1,006.00$      

29     MP1-108 Seasonal 5 156.25$          625.00$          251.50$         1,006.00$      

30     MP1-098 Seasonal 3 137.25$          549.00$          222.50$         890.00$         

31     MP1-099 Year Rnd 6 222.75$          891.00$          353.00$         1,412.00$      

32     MP1-117 Year Rnd 3 165.75$          663.00$          266.00$         1,064.00$      

33     MP1-118 Year Rnd 2 146.75$          587.00$          237.00$         948.00$         

34     MP1-119 Year Rnd 2 146.75$          587.00$          237.00$         948.00$         

35     MP1-120 Seasonal 2 127.75$          511.00$          208.00$         832.00$         

Totals: 5,468.75$       21,875.00$     8,802.50$      35,210.00$    

Existing and Proposed Rate Structure Costs Per Customer
Town of Brunswick

Mere Point Waste Water System

Existing Annual Rate Structure:  $435 Fixed Charge per Customer, $38 per bedroom for seaonal property 
and $76 for year round property.
Proposed Annual Rate Structure:  $716 Fixed Charge per Customer, $58 per bedroom for seaonal 
property and $116 for year round property.
There are 13 year round properties with 50 bedrooms and 22 seasonal properties with 75 bedrooms.

Type Unit
Existing

Per Bd Rm 
Cost

2016 Br Total
Existing

2016 Fixed 
Charge

Existing
2016 Total 
Revenue

Seasonal 38.00$          75 ea.             435.00$         12,420.00$         

Year Round 76.00$          50 ea.             435.00$         9,455.00$           

125 ea.           21,875.00$         

Type Unit
Proposed
Per Bd Rm 

Cost
2016 Br Total

Proposed
2016 Fixed 

Charge

Proposed
2016 Total 
Revenue

Seasonal 58.00$          75 ea.             716.00$         20,102.00$         

Year Round 116.00$        50 ea.             716.00$         15,108.00$         

125 ea.           35,210.00$         

Year Round Properties 13  ea.
Seasonal Properties 22  ea.

35  ea.

Existing
Budget
Rates

Proposed
Budget
Rates



 

 

    Page 1 

ARTICLE III. – SEWER USE; IN‐GROUND  SEWAGE TREATMENT SYSTEMS 

DIVISION 1. ‐ GENERALLY  

Sec. 16‐51. ‐ Scope of article.  

The following provisions of this article are hereby established, which provisions shall be considered a 
part of the contract between the town and every person who uses in-ground sewage treatment systems of 
the town, and every such person by connecting or maintaining a connection of any premises with such 
systems shall be considered to express assent to be bound thereby.  

This article has been modelled after the Ordinance of the Brunswick Sewer District, as adopted on 
June 13, 1983 and amended on February 18, 1988.  

(Ord. of 7-6-93) 

Sec. 16‐52. ‐ Definitions.  

Unless the context specifically indicates otherwise, the meaning of terms used in these rules and 
regulations shall be as follows:  

Applicant shall mean any person requesting approval to discharge residential domestic sanitary 
wastewaters into facilities of the town.  

BOD (Biochemical Oxygen Demand) shall mean the quantity of oxygen utilized in the biochemical 
oxidation of the wastewater under standard laboratory procedure in five (5) days at twenty (20) degrees 
C, expressed in milligram per liter (mg/l).  

Building sewer shall mean the pipe which receives the wastewater from a building, beginning at the 
walls of a building and extending eight (8) feet to the beginning of the public sewer.  

Charter shall mean the Charter of the Town of Brunswick and all amending acts.  

Codes enforcement officer shall mean the Codes Enforcement Officer of the Town of Brunswick or 
his duly authorized representative.  

Director of public works shall mean the Director of Public Works of the Town of Brunswick or his duly 
authorized representative.  

Domestic sanitary wastewater shall mean residential domestic sanitary wastewater, that is, 
wastewater derived exclusively from sanitary conveniences in residential dwellings. It does not contain 
groundwater, surface water, or stormwater. It does not include any type of discharge from commercial or 
industrial buildings, sites or facilities, no matter whether the discharge is process, sanitary or unpolluted 
discharge. Discharges from buildings, sites, or facilities with a mixed residential and industrial/commercial 
use shall be considered industrial or commercial wastewater.  

E.P.A. shall mean the Environmental Protection Agency of the U.S. Government.  

Excessive shall mean amounts or concentrations of a constituent of a wastewater which in the 
opinion of the director of public works or manager will cause damage to any facility of the town, including, 
but not limited to constituents which will be harmful to a wastewater treatment process, which cannot be 
removed at the wastewater treatment plant to the degree required to meet applicable environmental or 
health-related standards, which can constitute a nuisance, or which can otherwise endanger public health 
or the facilities of the town.  

Facilities of the town shall mean all structures and sewers of the town used for collecting, pumping, 
treating or disposing of wastewater or wastes including all connected furnishings and appurtenances and 
any other machines and/or equipment used in carrying out its purposes.  



 

 

    Page 2 

Garbage shall mean the animal and vegetable wastes resulting from the handling, preparation, 
cooking, and serving of food. It is composed largely of putrescible organic matter and its natural moisture 
content.  

Industrial or commercial wastewater shall mean the wastewater from industrial or commercial 
establishments, including but not limited to, sanitary and process wastewaters from commercial or 
industrial buildings, sites or facilities. Discharges from buildings, sites or facilities with a mixed residential 
and industrial/commercial use shall be considered industrial or commercial wastewater.  

In-ground sewage treatment system shall mean all structures and equipment related to a subsurface 
treatment system owned by the town for treatment of domestic sanitary wastewaters, including, but not 
limited to, sewers, holding tanks, pumps, septic tanks, leach fields, and related equipment and machinery.  

Manager shall mean the Brunswick Town Manager.  

Owner shall mean any person which holds title to the property of a participating household.  

Participating household shall mean a residential household with a domestic sanitary wastewater 
discharge which has permission from the Town of Brunswick and any other necessary party to connect 
and maintain a connection to an in-ground sewage treatment system owned by the town.  

Person shall mean any individual, firm, company, corporation, association, society, group, trust, or 
governmental authority.  

pH shall mean the reciprocal of the logarithm (to the base ten) of the hydrogen ion concentration in 
grams per liter of solution.  

Properly shredded garbage shall mean garbage that has been shredded to such a degree that all 
particles will be carried freely under the flow conditions normally prevailing in public sewers with no 
particle greater than one-half inch (1.27 centimeters) in any dimension.  

Public sewer shall mean a sewer controlled by the Town of Brunswick, used to convey domestic 
sanitary wastewater from participating households to an in-ground sewage treatment system.  

Sea water shall mean water from tidal areas, regardless of its salinity, but shall not include waters 
from drilled or dug wells.  

Sewer shall mean a pipe or conduit for carrying domestic sanitary wastewater, to which rainwaters, 
surface or ground waters are not intentionally admitted.  

Shall is mandatory; May is permissive.  

Slug shall mean any discharge of water or wastewater which includes a concentration of any given 
constituent or a quantity of flow which exceeds for any period longer than fifteen (15) minutes, more than 
five (5) times the average twenty-four-hour concentration or flow during normal operation.  

Spill shall mean the release, accidental or otherwise, of any material not normally released to the 
facilities of the town, which by virtue of its volume, concentration or physical or chemical characteristics, 
creates a hazard to the facilities of the town, their operation or their personnel. Such characteristics shall 
include, but are not limited to materials or wastes listed in Division 2 of this article.  

Storm drain shall mean a pipe or conduit for carrying rainwater, groundwater, surface water, 
condensate, cooling water, or unpolluted water from any source.  

Superintendent shall mean the Superintendent of the Brunswick Sewer District or his duly authorized 
representative.  

Suspended solids shall mean total suspended matter that either floats on the surface of, or is in 
suspension in water, wastewater, or other liquids, and that is removable by laboratory filtering as 
prescribed in "Standard Methods for the Examination of Water and Wastewater" latest edition, and is 
referred to as nonfilterable residue.  

Town shall mean the Town of Brunswick, acting through its town council, town manager, or their duly 
authorized representatives.  



 

 

    Page 3 

Wastes shall mean substances in liquid, solid or gaseous form that can be carried in water.  

Wastewater shall mean the spent water of a community and may be a combination of the liquid and 
water-carried wastes from residences, commercial buildings, industrial plants, and institutions, together 
with any groundwater, surface water, and rainwater that may be present.  

Wastewater treatment plant shall mean the in-ground sewage treatment system and related facilities 
of the town serving the participating households, or the Brunswick Sewer District Wastewater Treatment 
Plant located on Pine Tree Drive, Brunswick.  

(Ord. of 7-6-93, Art. I) 

Secs. 16‐53—16‐60. ‐ Reserved.  

 

DIVISION 2. ‐ USE OF PUBLIC SEWERS  

Sec. 16‐61. ‐ Scope.  

This division regulates the use of the facilities of the town, including but not limited to, in-ground 
sewage treatment systems, building sewers, and/or wastewater treatment systems, and the discharge of 
waters and wastes into such facilities, and provides for penalties for the violations of this division.  

(Ord. of 7-6-93, Art. II, § 1) 

Sec. 16‐62. ‐ Permitted discharges.  

Only domestic sanitary wastewater, as defined in section 16-52, shall be discharged to in-ground 
sewage treatment facilities, building sewers or related facilities of the town.  

(Ord. of 7-6-93, Art. II, § 2) 

Sec. 16‐63. ‐ Prohibited discharges.  

Industrial or commercial wastewaters, as defined in section 16-52, shall not be discharged to in-
ground sewage treatment facilities, building sewers or related facilities of the town.  

(Ord. of 7-6-93, Art. II, § 3) 

Sec. 16‐64. ‐ Permit required.  

(a) There shall be no connection into a public sewer or any appurtenances thereof without a plumbing 
permit from the codes enforcement officer and approval of an entrance application from the Town of 
Brunswick.  

(b) Applications for permits to connect with or disconnect from any public sewer shall be made to the 
codes enforcement officer and the town on forms prescribed and furnished by them at their offices.  

(c) Applications for permits for sewer connections involving industrial or commercial wastewater will not 
be accepted.  



 

 

    Page 4 

(d) The permit applicant shall notify the codes enforcement officers when the building sewer is ready for 
inspection and connection to the public sewer. The connection shall be made under the direction of 
the town.  

(Ord. of 7-6-93, Art. II, § 4) 

Sec. 16‐65. ‐ Responsibility for connection costs.  

All costs and expenses incident to the installation and connection of the building sewer shall be 
borne by the owner. The owner shall indemnify the town from any loss or damage to facilities of the town 
or surrounding property that may be caused, directly or indirectly, by the installation of the building sewer.  

(Ord. of 7-6-93, Art. II, § 5) 

Sec. 16‐66. ‐ Building sewer jurisdiction.  

Building sewers connected to a public sewer are within the jurisdiction of the town and the provisions 
of this article apply to such building sewers.  

(Ord. of 7-6-93, Art. II, § 6) 

Sec. 16‐67. ‐ Construction methods and materials.  

The size, slope, alignment, materials of construction of a building sewer, and the methods to be used 
in excavating, placing of the pipe, jointing, testing, and backfilling the trench, shall all conform to the 
requirements of the Maine State Plumbing Code or other ordinances of the town.  

(Ord. of 7-6-93, Art. II, § 7) 

Sec. 16‐68. ‐ Connection of old building sewers.  

Old building sewers may be used in connection with new buildings only when they can be shown by 
the applicant to meet all requirements of this article.  

(Ord. of 7-6-93, Art. II, § 8) 

Sec. 16‐69. ‐ Lifting of wastewater required.  

Whenever possible, the building sewer shall be brought to the building at an elevation below the 
basement floor. In all buildings in which any plumbing fixtures are too low to permit gravity flow to the 
public sewer, wastewater originating from such fixtures shall be lifted by an approved means and 
discharged to the building sewer.  

(Ord. of 7-6-93, Art. II, § 9) 

Sec. 16‐70. ‐ Protection; restoration of property.  

All excavations for building sewer installation shall be adequately guarded with barricades and lights 
so as to protect the public from hazard. When it is necessary to disturb streets, sidewalks, parkways, and 



 

 

    Page 5 

other property in the course of the work, a permit is required by the town. The property shall be restored 
in a manner satisfactory to the town, after consulting with the owner of the property.  

(Ord. of 7-6-93, Art. II, § 10) 

Sec. 16‐71. ‐ Abandonment of service.  

No person shall dismantle or move any building having a service entrance into a public sewer 
without first obtaining an appropriate permit from the codes enforcement officer and notifying the codes 
enforcement officer. Before the building is dismantled or moved, the entrance of the service into such 
building shall be sealed with a watertight masonry plug. The plug shall be installed under the supervision 
of the town. If the building sewer is determined to be unserviceable by the town, the owner shall at his 
own expense remove such service and seal the opening at the entrance to the public sewer.  

(Ord. of 7-6-93, Art. II, § 11) 

Sec. 16‐72. ‐ Responsibility for building sewer repairs and maintenance.  

All costs and expenses incident to repairs and maintenance of the building sewer (from the wall of 
the building to a point five (5) feet from the building, at the beginning of the public sewer), shall be borne 
by the owner.  

(Ord. of 7-6-93, Art. II, § 12) 

Sec. 16‐73. ‐ Unpolluted water prohibited.  

No person shall discharge or cause to be discharged any rain water, surface water, groundwater, 
roof runoff, subsurface drainage, cooling water, or any wastewater other than residential domestic 
sanitary wastewater to any public sewer. Any person discharging unpolluted water shall be required to 
remove the unpolluted water from the public sewer at owner's expense.  

(Ord. of 7-6-93, Art. II, § 13) 

Sec. 16‐74. ‐ Harmful wastes prohibited.  

No person shall discharge or cause to be discharged into any public sewer, any of the below 
described substances, materials, wastes or wastewaters:  

(a) Wastewaters having a pH lower than 5.5 or higher than 9.5 or having any other corrosive 
property capable of causing damage or hazard to any facilities or personnel of the town.  

(b) Gasoline, benzene, naphtha, fuel oil, or other flammable or explosive liquid, solid, or gas.  

(c) Solid or viscous substances in such quantities or of such size to be capable of obstructing the 
flow in sewers, or interfering with the proper operation of the facilities of the town such as but 
not limited to: ashes, bones, cinders, sand, mud, straw, shavings, metal, glass, rags, feathers, 
tar, plastics, wood, underground garbage, whole blood, paunch manure, hair and fleshings, 
entrails and paper dishes, cups, milk containers, etc., either whole or ground by garbage 
grinders.  

(d) Any waters containing toxic or poisonous solids, liquids or gases in sufficient quantity, either 
singly or by interaction with other wastes, to interfere with any waste treatment process, 
constitute a hazard to humans or animals, create a public nuisance, or create any hazard in the 



 

 

    Page 6 

receiving soils of the in-ground sewage treatment system or related facilities of the town, or in 
Casco Bay.  

(e) Any sea water, regardless of its salinity (salt content). Sea water shall not be used for toilet 
flushing, even during power outages.  

(Ord. of 7-6-93, Art. II, § 14) 

Sec. 16‐75. ‐ Harmful wastes limited.  

The following described substances, materials, wastes or wastewaters shall be limited in discharges 
to public sewers to concentrations or quantities which are not excessive as defined in section 16-52. The 
town may set limitations lower than the limitations established below, if in its opinion such limitations are 
necessary to meet the objectives of this article.  

(a) Wastewater, liquid, or vapor having a temperature higher than one hundred fifty (150) degrees 
Fahrenheit (sixty-five (65) degrees C).  

(b) Garbage that has not been "properly shredded" as defined in this article. 

(c) Radioactive wastes or isotopes in excessive amounts or such half-life or concentration as may 
exceed limits established in applicable state or federal regulations or by the town.  

(d) Water or wastes which by interaction with other waters or wastes in the public sewer, release 
obnoxious gases or form suspended solids which interfere with or are harmful to facilities of the 
town or the treatment process.  

(e) Wastewaters containing: 

(1) An average concentration of suspended solids in excess of four hundred (400) mg/l or an 
average concentration of dissolved solids (such as, but not limited to, sodium chloride and 
sodium sulfate) in excess of six hundred (600) mg/l.  

(2) Materials which cause excessive discoloration (such as, but not limited to, dye wastes and 
vegetable tanning solutions).  

(3) An average concentration of BOD in excess of five hundred (500) mg/l or material which 
cause unusual chemical oxygen demand, or chlorine requirements.  

(4) Caustic alkalinity, calculated as CaCO3 (calcium carbonate) in excess of one hundred 
(100) mg/l.  

(5) Fats, wax, grease, or oils, whether emulsified or not, in excess of one hundred (100) mg/l 
or containing substances which may solidify or become viscous at temperatures between 
thirty-two (32) degrees Fahrenheit and one hundred fifty (150) degrees Fahrenheit (sixty-
five (65) degrees C).  

(6) Excessive amounts of iron, chromium, cadmium, copper, zinc, mercury, nickel, mineral 
acid, or similar objectionable or toxic substances.  

(7) Phenols or other taste or odor producing substances in excessive amounts. 

(8) Materials in such concentrations as to constitute a "slug" as defined in this article. 

(9) Materials which are not amenable to treatment or reduction by the wastewater treatment 
plant or are amenable to treatment only to such a limited degree that the wastewater 
treatment plant effluent can not meet the requirements of other agencies having jurisdiction 
over the town.  

(Ord. of 7-6-93, Art. II, § 15) 



 

 

    Page 7 

Sec. 16‐76. ‐ Control of wastewater strength.  

If any wastewaters or wastes are discharged, or are proposed to be discharged to the public sewers 
containing excessive substances or possessing characteristics included but not limited to those listed in 
Division 2 of this article, the town may do any or all of the following:  

(a) Reject the wastewaters or the wastes. 

(b) Require that pretreatment of wastewaters or wastes be provided to modify them to an 
acceptable condition for discharge to the public sewers.  

(c) Require control over the quantities and rates of discharge of the wastewaters or the wastes.  

(d) Require payment to cover the added costs of handling and treating the wastes under the 
provisions of Division 3 of this article.  

(Ord. of 7-6-93, Art. II, § 16) 

Sec. 16‐77. ‐ Waste characteristic change.  

Any person proposing a substantial change in the volume or character of wastewater as described in 
the sewer connection permit application that is being discharged into a public sewer shall notify the codes 
enforcement officer at least forty-five (45) days prior to the proposed change.  

(Ord. of 7-6-93, Art. II, § 17) 

Sec. 16‐78. ‐ Interceptors required.  

Grease, oil and sand interceptors shall be provided when, in the opinion of the town they are 
necessary for the proper handling of liquid wastes containing grease in excessive amounts, or any 
flammable wastes, sand, or other harmful ingredients. All interceptors shall be of a type and capacity 
approved by the town, and shall be located as to be easily accessible for cleaning and inspection. If 
required by the town, grease, oil, or sand interceptors shall be installed and maintained continuously in 
effective operating order by the owner at his expense. The town shall have the right to inspect such 
interceptors in accordance with Division 2 of this article.  

(Ord. of 7-6-93, Art. II, § 18) 

Sec. 16‐79. ‐ Control structure required.  

When required by the town, the owner of property served by a public sewer carrying wastes shall 
install a suitable control structure and wastewater flow measuring and monitoring device to carry out the 
purpose of this article. Such structure and measuring devices shall be constructed in accordance with 
plans submitted to and approved by the town. If required by the town, the structure and flow measuring 
device shall be installed and maintained continuously in effective operating order by the owner at his 
expense.  

(Ord. of 7-6-93, Art. II, § 19) 

Sec. 16‐80. ‐ Preliminary treatment facilities required.  

When required by the town, the owner of any property served by a public sewer shall provide 
preliminary treatment facilities to carry out the purpose of this article. Applications for pretreatment 
facilities are to be accompanied by plans, specifications and other pertinent information which must be 



 

 

    Page 8 

approved by the town prior to construction. When required by the town, all preliminary treatment facilities 
shall be installed and maintained continuously in effective operating order by the owner at his expense.  

(Ord. of 7-6-93, Art. II, § 20) 

Sec. 16‐81. ‐ Tampering prohibited.  

No person other than an authorized representative of the town shall open, close, tamper or damage 
any of the facilities of the town or the in-ground sewage treatment system.  

(Ord. of 7-6-93, Art. II, § 21) 

Sec. 16‐82. ‐ Town access to sewered property.  

The town shall have the right at all reasonable hours, after reasonable notice, to enter any property 
connected with the public sewer for the purpose of examining the property and sewer connections, to 
determine the purposes for which the sewer is used and the proper sewer use charges, and to enforce 
this article.  

(Ord. of 7-6-93, Art. II, § 22) 

Sec. 16‐83. ‐ Liability for violations.  

Any person violating any of the provisions of this article shall be liable to the town for any expense, 
loss or damage incurred, directly or indirectly, by the town due to such violation.  

(Ord. of 7-6-93, Art. II, § 20) 

Sec. 16‐84. ‐ Notice of violation required.  

Any person found to be in violation of any provision of this article shall be served by the town with a 
written notice stating the nature of the violation and providing a reasonable time limit, as determined by 
the town, for the satisfactory correction thereof. The offender shall, within the period of time stated in the 
notice, permanently cease all such violations. Alternatively, the town may correct such violation and 
charge all expenses thereof to the violator.  

(Ord. of 7-6-93, Art. II, § 24) 

Sec. 16‐85. ‐ Fine.  

Any person who continues any violation beyond the time limit provided for in Division 2 of this article 
may be liable to the town in an amount of up to one hundred dollars ($100.00) per day until such violation 
is corrected or abated.  

(Ord. of 7-6-93, Art. II, § 25) 

Secs. 16‐86—16‐100. ‐ Reserved.  

 



 

 

    Page 9 

DIVISION 3. ‐ SEWER USE CHARGES  

Sec. 16‐101. ‐ User charges established.  

The owner of a participating household discharging wastewater to a public sewer shall be subject to 
a sewer user charge. The user charge shall be based on the quantity and characteristics of the 
wastewater discharged to a public sewer.  

The town council shall, after public notice and hearing, establish reasonable user charges reflecting 
the actual costs of the operation and maintenance of the in-ground sewage treatment system and 
facilities of the town benefitting the participating households. In establishing the charges, the council may 
take into account any recommended user charges submitted by the participating households. The 
participating households may submit a recommended user charge, with explanation, annually to the 
council for its consideration.  The current schedule of user charges, which is published separately, shall 
be considered an integral part of this article. Sewer user charges will be billed in accordance with the 
Master Schedule of Revenues, Charges, Fees and Fines, Appendix B to this Municipal Code of 
Ordinances. 

(Ord. of 7-6-93, Art. III, § 1) 

Sec. 16‐102. ‐ Unmetered sewer users.  

Charges for participating households which discharge domestic wastewater into the public sewer, 
where water is supplied from sources other than the Brunswick-Topsham Water District, shall beare 
established by accounting for both fixed and variable charges. The fixed charges are those common to all 
participating households and are divided equally among all participating households. The variable 
charges shall be based on an estimated amount of wastewater from each bedroom of a participating 
household connected to the public sewer. The current charges for unmetered participating households 
shall be listed in a rate schedule. Sewer user charges will be billed in accordance with the Master 
Schedule of Revenues, Charges, Fees and Fines, Appendix B to this Municipal Code of Ordinances. 

(Ord. of 7-6-93, Art. III, § 2) 

Sec. 16‐103. ‐ Rates due from owner.  

All user charges are due from the owner of the participating household served by the public sewer 
and such owner shall be held responsible.  

(Ord. of 7-6-93, Art. III, § 3) 

Sec. 16‐104. ‐ Rates due quarterly.  

All user charges shall be due and payable at the office of the town quarterly. Failure of the owner of 
the participating household to receive his bill does not relieve him of the obligation of its payment.  

(Ord. of 7-6-93, Art. III, § 4) 

Sec. 16‐105. ‐ Late payment or nonpayment of rates.  

A late payment charge may be applied to user charge bills which remain unpaid for longer than thirty 
(30) days after the billing date. The late charge shall be one and one-half (1½) percent per month of the 
unpaid balance but not less than two dollars ($2.00) per bill. The town may also record a lien against the 



 

 

    Page 10 

property at the Cumberland County Registry of Deeds to secure payment of rates in accordance with the 
Charter. Such a lien constitutes a mortgage having priority over all other mortgages except those of 
taxes, and said mortgage automatically forecloses after eighteen (18) months after date of recording if not 
paid.  

(Ord. of 7-6-93, Art. III, § 5) 

Secs. 16‐106—16‐110. ‐ Reserved.  

 

DIVISION 4. ‐ NEW CONNECTIONS OR ENLARGEMENT OF USE  

Sec. 16‐111. ‐ Application of division.  

This division shall apply to all new construction of in-ground sewage treatment systems or 
extensions, expansions or additions of participating households to existing in-ground sewage treatment 
systems.  

(Ord. of 7-6-93, Art. IV) 

Sec. 16‐112. ‐ New connections or enlargement of use.  

Pending evaluation of the systems and their operation, there shall be no new connections of 
additional households to the in-ground sewerage treatment systems, and no participating household may 
add additional bedrooms. This provision is intended to allow for an orderly assessment of the quality of 
the system as constructed and its operations, and to assure that the system is fully functional before 
determining whether there may be any new or increased discharges. The capacity of the in-ground 
sewage treatment systems are designed on the basis of the number of bedrooms in each participating 
household and, therefore, the addition of new bedrooms within participating households during this 
assessment period must be prohibited.  

(Ord. of 7-6-93, Art. IV, § 1) 



 

 

    Page 1 

APPENDIX B MASTER SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, CHARGES, FEES AND FINES  

Reference  Date  Description  Amount 

Chapter 16—Utilities  

Sec. 16‐29   2/6/1989 

Violation of this article first offense/second and 

subsequent offenses within a 12‐month period of time, 

maximum fines  

$100.00/$250.00

Sec. 16‐85   7/6/1993 
Violation beyond time limit in division 2 of this article, 

maximum fine 
$100.00 per day

Sec. 16‐101 

Sec. 16‐102 
10/1/2016 

Annual fixed rate per property (billed quarterly) 

Annual variable rates per bedroom (billed quarterly): 

Seasonal property 

Year Round property 

$716 

 

$58 

$116 

  

(Ord. of 11-16-15(3); Ord. of 11-16-15(4); Ord. of 2-1-16(1); Ord. of 2-1-16(2); Ord. of 3-21-
16(2))  



 
 

TOWN OF BRUNSWICK 
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

 
 
The Town Council will hold a public hearing on Monday, August 15, 2016 at 7:00 p.m. in the Council 
Chambers of the Brunswick Town Hall, 85 Union Street, to consider amendments to the Town of 
Brunswick Municipal Code of Ordinances, Chapter 16, Article III: Sewer Use – In Ground Sewage 
Treatment Systems, and the Mere Point Wastewater District fees in the Master Schedule of 
Revenues, Charges, Fees and Fines, Appendix B to the Code of Ordinances.    
 
The text of the proposed amendments is too extensive to be included with this notice.  Anyone having 
questions about the proposed amendments wishing to obtain copies of it should contact the Brunswick 
Town Clerk's or Town Manager's Office during regular office hours Monday through Friday from 8:30 
a.m. to 4:30 p.m. 
 
INDIVIDUALS NEEDING AUXILIARY AIDS FOR EFFECTIVE COMMUNICATION PLEASE 
CONTACT THE TOWN MANAGER'S OFFICE AT 725-6659 (TDD 725-5521) 

 
 
Frances M. Smith 
Town Clerk of Brunswick, Maine 

 
__________, 2016 
 
 
Printed in the Times Record on ________, 2016 



ITEM 94
BACK UP MATERIALS 



	
	

MEMORANDUM	
	
	
TO:	 John	Eldridge,	Town	Manager	 	
	
FROM:	 Julie	Henze,	Finance	Director	
	 	
DATE:	 July	20,	2016	
	
SUBJECT:	 Update	of	Emergency	Medical	Services	(Ambulance)	Fees	
	
	
	
In	preparation	for	the	public	hearing	scheduled	by	the	Town	Council	for	August	1,	2016,	I	have	
prepared	the	attached	documents.		These	are	all	the	same	documents	presented	at	the	July	18,	2016	
meeting,	with	two	changes:	
	

1. 	Correction	of	the	fees	on	the	proposed	amended	Master	Schedule	of	Revenues,	Charges,	Fee	
and	Fines,	Appendix	B,	chapter	9.		The	draft	provided	at	the	July	18th	meeting	was	from	a	
previous	iteration	of	our	recommendation,	and	I	apologize	for	the	error.	
	

2. Removal	of	the	“Respond	to	Motor	Vehicle	Accident”	section	on	the	EMS	Billing	Rate	Survey.		
Though	this	information	was	provided	by	fire	departments	in	response	to	the	survey,	we	are	
not	proposing	any	additional	fees	at	this	time.	
	

To	be	clear,	we	have	based	our	recommended	rates	on	the	average	of	the	municipalities	surveyed.		
The	recommended	changes	are	as	follows:	
	

  Current rate  Change  Proposed Rate  Survey average 

BLS:		            $380  $100  										$480	           $479.63  

ALS1:	            530  90  										620	            621.70  

ALS2:		            690  170  										860	            864.78  

Mileage:		               11  1  													12	               12.16  

Non‐transport:		 										160	 ‐  										160	            114.58  

ALS	Assist:	            265  35  										300	            310.79  
	
	
Ken	Brillant	and	I	will	be	available	at	the	public	hearing	on	August	1,	2016	to	answer	any	questions.		
We	also	welcome	any	questions	in	advance	and	will	provide	additional	information	as	requested.	



Medical Billing Rates

Non‐ ALS

Procedure: BLS ALS 1 ALS 2 Mileage Transport Assist

Old Orchard Beach 468.00            556.00            805.00          10.00            N/C 300.00          

Saco 420.00            429.00            765.00          12.50            100.00           300.00          

Scarborough 523.44            807.53            1,145.75       8.86              125.00           300.00          

Cape Elizabeth 400.00            500.00            700.00          10.00            N/C N/C

South Portland 400.00            500.00            700.00          10.00            100.00           300.00          

Portland 748.00            888.00            1,266.00       18.06            N/C 451.00          

Westbrook 420.00            500.00            700.00          12.00            125.00           300.00          

Gorham 420.00            500.00            700.00          12.00            125.00           300.00          

Windham 600.00            800.00            1,100.00       14.00            100.00           300.00          

Falmouth 600.00            900.00            1,200.00       16.00            150.00           300.00          

Cumberland 370.00            495.00            690.00          12.50            100.00           300.00          

Yarmouth 450.00            650.00            775.00          12.00            100.00           300.00          

Freeport 400.00            500.00            700.00          12.00            150.00           300.00          

Topsham** 375.00            500.00            625.00          10.50            100.00           225.00          

Bath 600.00            800.00            1,100.00       12.00            100.00           375.00          

Average 479.63            621.70            864.78          12.16            114.58           310.79          

Brunswick 380.00            530.00            690.00          11.00            160.00           265.00          

Over/(Under Average (99.63)             (91.70)             (174.78)         (1.16)             45.42             (45.79)           

Recommended 480.00            620.00            860.00          12.00            160.00           300.00          

Increase/(Decrease) 100.00            90.00             170.00          1.00              ‐                 35.00            

** Topsham rates as currently proposed for update/increase

previous rates: 334.99            390.70            575.76          10.00            ‐                 ‐                

O:\Finance\Ordinances\Revenue Ordinance\Ambulance\Area EMS Billing Rate Survey 7/20/2016



Town of Brunswick

Annual Ambulance Revenues

2010‐11 2011‐12 2012‐13 2013‐14 2014‐15 2015‐16 YTD

Billed 1,032,520.53      1,142,937.73      1,203,435.31    1,208,796.12    1,229,194.10      1,132,524.57  

Write‐offs (244,007.20)        (289,648.01)        (293,333.40)      (291,546.14)      (318,616.75)        (324,443.51)    

Collection fees (1,620.31)             (1,531.67)             (1,661.66)           (1,269.07)           (2,503.50)            (2,922.60)         

Deferred 17,770.46            (27,608.60)           (19,103.35)         (87,774.85)         (43,651.01)         

Net Revenue 804,663.48          824,149.45          889,336.90        828,206.06        864,422.84         805,158.46      

% write offs 23.63% 25.34% 24.37% 24.12% 25.92% 28.65%

Medicare Reimbursement Rates per call

Brunswick Medicare Medicare Sequestration Net Medicare Not covered Write‐off

Billing Rate Allowed Reimb (80%) reduction Reimb by Medicare Amount

BLS 380.00                  365.56                 292.45                (5.85)                   286.60                93.40                 20.29         

ALS‐1 530.00                  434.10                 347.28                (6.95)                   340.33                189.67               102.85       

ALS‐2 690.00                  628.31                 502.65                (10.05)                 492.60                197.40               71.74         

mileage 11.00                    10.97                   8.78                    (0.18)                   8.60                    2.40                   0.21           

Non‐transport 160.00                  ‐                       ‐                      ‐                      ‐                       160.00               160.00       

Non‐transport 160.00                  128.00                 102.40                (2.05)                   100.35                59.65                 34.05         

(deceased)

O:\Finance\Ordinances\Revenue Ordinance\Ambulance\Ambulance billing analysis 2016 7/7/2016



 

 

    Page 1 

TOWN OF BRUNSWICK MUNICIPAL CODE OF ORDINANCES 

ARTICLE III. ‐ EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES[3]  

Sec. 9‐38. ‐ Purpose.  

The purpose of this chapter is to establish guidelines and fees relating to emergency medical 
services provided by the town.  

(Ord. of 6-18-07) 

Sec. 9‐39. ‐ General.  

The town shall provide emergency medical services within the municipal boundaries of the town and 
beyond those boundaries by agreement authorized by the town council. However, nothing in this article 
shall prohibit, on a case-by-case basis, the chief of the emergency medical services unit from providing 
service beyond the boundaries of the town when the chief determines that a response is appropriate.  

(Ord. of 6-18-07) 

Sec. 9‐40. ‐ Definitions.  

The following words, terms, and phrases, when used in this chapter, shall have the meanings 
ascribed to them in this section, except where the context clearly indicates a different meaning.  

Accepting assignment is a process in which an emergency medical services provider, in exchange 
for receiving payment directly from an insurer, agrees to accept a fee other than the provider's stated fee.  

Advanced life support intervention is a procedure beyond the scope of an EMT-Basic as defined in 
the National EMS Education and Practice Blueprint.  

Advanced life support level 1 (ALS1) is, when medically necessary, the provision of an assessment 
and/or the provision of one (1) or more ALS interventions.  

Advanced life support level 2 (ALS2) is, when medically necessary, the administration of at least 
three (3) different medications and/or the provision of one (1) or more of the following ALS procedures:  

• Manual defibrillation/cardioversion.  
• Endotracheal intubations.  
• Central venous line.  
• Cardiac pacing.  
• Chest decompression.  
• Surgical airway.  
• Intraosseous line.  
 
ALS assist is the provision of ALS services to another emergency medical services provider for 

which the town does not transport patients.  

Basic life support (BLS) is, when medically necessary, the provision of basic life support services as 
defined in the National EMS Education and Practice Blueprint for the EMT-Basic including the 
establishment of a peripheral intravenous (IV) line.  

Billing unit shall be the town department or division designated by the town manager to prepare 
patient invoices, statements, collection notices, insurance claims and any other required information in 
order to pursue collection of the fees levied under this chapter.  



 

 

    Page 2 

Chief of emergency medical services is the person designated by the town manager to oversee 
emergency medical services operations.  

Emergency medical services division is the division of the fire department that provides emergency 
medical services.  

Emergency medical service unit is a town-owned vehicle, or other craft, that is designed, equipped, 
and operated for the transportation of sick or injured persons, requiring or likely to require medical 
attention during transport.  

Intraosseous line or infusion is the process of injection directly into the marrow of the bone.  

Loaded mile is the mileage, rounded to the nearest mile, from the location where the person is first 
attended by the emergency medical service unit to an emergency medical care facility or to a rendezvous 
point with another emergency service provider.  

Non-Transport (billable) occurs when a patient, or person representing a patient calls for, or 
otherwise requests, an emergency medical service response and for which an emergency medical 
services unit responds and it is determined on-scene or subsequently that a response was not medically 
necessary.  

Non-Transport (non-billable) occurs when a person unrelated, or otherwise not connected to a 
patient, calls for, or otherwise requests, an emergency medical service response and for which an 
emergency medical services unit responds and it is determined on-scene that a response was not 
medically necessary.  

Patient is a person for whom an emergency medical services unit is requested, regardless of the 
origin of request.  

Run sheet is a form, completed by the emergency services personnel, that describes a patient's 
condition and the medical services provided.  

(Ord. of 6-18-07) 

Sec. 9‐41. ‐ Fees.  

Fees shall be charged for emergency medical services provided by the town in accordance with the 
Master Schedule of Revenues, Charges, Fees and Fines, Appendix B to this Municipal Code of 
Ordinances.  

With the exception of ALS assists, all invoices for services rendered by the town's emergency 
medical services unit shall be billed to the patient or the patient's insurer. ALS assists shall be billed to the 
emergency medical services provider requesting the assistance.  

(Ord. of 6-18-07; Ord. of 6-1-09; Ord. of 11-16-15(3)) 

Sec. 9‐42. ‐ Billing.  

The emergency services division shall prepare a run sheet for each patient. The chief of the 
emergency services division, or the chief's designee, shall review the run sheet for accuracy and 
completeness. The completed run sheet, along with any supplemental information, shall be provided to 
the billing unit.  

The billing unit shall invoice the patient in accordance with the fees specified in this article. As a 
matter of law, the billing unit may be required to accept payments from, and at rates determined by a 
government insurer, in which case an insurance claim will be submitted directly to the government 
insurer. The billing unit may also make arrangements (known generally as "accepting assignment") with 
other insurers to accept payments directly from those insurers at fees other than those provided for in this 
article. Nothing in this article shall require the billing unit to accept assignment from all insurers.  



 

 

    Page 3 

The billing unit shall examine the list of unpaid accounts periodically and may abate, or otherwise 
deem uncollectible, any amounts the billing unit determines, in its judgment, to be uncollectible.  

(Ord. of 6-18-07) 

Sec. 9‐43. ‐ Collection agencies.  

The billing unit is authorized to negotiate arrangements with collection agencies to pursue delinquent 
accounts. Collection agency fees may be negotiated on terms satisfactory to the billing unit.  

(Ord. of 6-18-07) 



 

 

    Page 1 

TOWN OF BRUNSWICK MUNICIPAL CODE OF ORDINANCES 

APPENDIX B MASTER SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, CHARGES, FEES AND FINES  

Reference  Date  Description  Amount 

Chapter 9—Human Services  

Sec. 9‐41   6/1/2009  Fees for emergency medical services provided by the town 
 

   
Non‐transport (billable) $160.00 per response

   
ALS assist 

$265.00 per response

$300.00 per response

   
Basic life support 

$380.00 per response

$480.00 per response

   
Advance life support 

$530.00 per response

$620.00 per response

   
Advance life support 2 

$690.00 per response

$860.00 per response

   
Loaded mile 

$11.00 per mile 

$12.00 per mile 

  



ITEM 95
BACK UP MATERIALS 



Town of Brunswick, Maine 
	

OFFICE	OF	THE	TOWN	MANAGER	
	

O:\Council\Council	By	Year\Council	2016\Memo	Complete	Streets	Policy	080516.docx	

MEMORANDUM	
	
TO:	 Town	Council	
	
FROM:	 John	Eldridge	
	 Town	Manager	
	
DATE:	 August	5,	2016	
	
SUBJECT:	 Complete	Streets	Policy	
	 	
	
	
Complete	Streets	is	the	concept	of	integrating	people	and	place	in	the	planning,	design,	
construction,	operation,	and	maintenance	of	transportation	networks.		A	nationwide	movement,	
promoting	this	concept	was	launched	by	the	National	Complete	Streets	Coalition	in	2004.		
According	to	its	website,	“the	Coalition	promotes	the	development	and	implementation	of	policies	
and	professional	practices	that	ensure	streets	are	safe	for	people	of	all	ages	and	abilities,	balance	
the	needs	of	different	modes,	and	support	local	land	uses,	economies,	cultures,	and	natural	
environments.”		Since	2004	communities	in	Maine	and	around	the	nation	have	been	adopting	
complete	streets	policies	to	guide	their	transportation	design	and	activities.		The	Maine	Department	
of	Transportation	(“MDOT”)	adopted	a	complete	streets	policy	in	2014.	
	
The	Brunswick	Bicycle	and	Pedestrian	Advisory	Committee	(“BBPAC”)	has	promoted	the	
development	of	a	complete	streets	policy	for	Brunswick.		While	the	Town	has	generally	considered	
many	of	the	elements	of	such	a	policy	in	developing	and	designing	road	projects,	BBPAC	felt	the	
practices	should	be	formalized	in	policy	adopted	by	the	Town	Council.		
	
Attached	is	a	proposed	complete	streets	policy	developed	by	BBPAC	in	cooperation	with	John	
Foster	and	me.		We	support	the	adoption	of	the	proposed	policy.		Dr.	Will	Wilkoff,	BBPAC	Co‐Chair	
and	I	look	forward	to	answering	your	questions.	
	
	
Attachment	



	

	 Page	1	of	4	
	
O:\Policies\Policies	Legislative\Complete	Streets\Complete	Streets	072016	JE	Draft	(5).docx	

Town	of	Brunswick	
Complete	Streets	Policy	

	
	
I. Vision	Statement	
	
The	Town	of	Brunswick	(the	“Town”)	strives	to	be	a	community	in	which	all	residents	and	
visitors,	regardless	of	their	age,	ability,	or	financial	resources,	can	safely	and	efficiently	use	
the	public	right‐of‐way	to	meet	their	transportation	needs	regardless	of	their	preferred	
mode	of	travel.		Promoting	pedestrian,	bicycle,	and	public	transportation	travel	reduces	
negative	environmental	impacts,	promotes	healthy	living,	advances	the	well‐being	of	
travelers,	supports	the	goal	of	compact	development,	and	meets	the	needs	of	diverse	
populations.	
	
The	Town’s	street	system	design	will	be	consistent	with,	and	supportive	of,	local	
neighborhoods,	the	historic	downtown,	Bowdoin	College,	and	the	Route	1	Corridor,	
recognizing	that	transportation	needs	vary	and	must	be	balanced,	flexible,	safe,	and	cost	
effective.	
	
	
II. Policy	Statement	
	

A. It	is	the	policy	of	the	Town	of	Brunswick	to	plan,	design,	construct,	operate,	and	
maintain	an	appropriate	and	integrated	transportation	system	that	meets	the	needs	
of	motorists,	pedestrians,	bicyclists,	wheelchair	users,	transit	vehicles,	freight	
haulers,	emergency	responders,	and	residents	of	all	ages	and	abilities.		Those	
involved	in	the	planning	and	design	of	projects	within	the	public	right‐of‐way	will	
give	consideration	to	all	users	and	modes	of	travel	at	the	start	of	planning	and	
design	work.	

	
B. Street	improvements	shall	be	viewed	as	opportunities	to	create	safer,	more	

accessible	streets	for	all	users.		This	shall	apply	to	new	construction,	reconstruction,	
and	rehabilitation.			

	
C. Implementation	of	this	policy	shall	consider	opportunities	for	enhancing	the	context	

and	character	of	the	surrounding	built	and	natural	environments.		Transportation	
facilities,	including	roads,	should	be	adapted	to	fit	and	enhance	the	character	of	
surrounding	neighborhoods.	

	
D. Special	attention	should	be	given	to	projects	that	enhance	the	overall	transportation	

system	and	its	connectivity.		Specifically,	high	priority	should	be	given	to:	
	

1. corridors	providing	primary	access	to	one	or	more	significant	destinations	such	
as	parks	or	recreation	areas,	schools,	shopping/commercial	areas,	public	
transportation	or	employment	centers;	



	

	 Page	2	of	4	
	
O:\Policies\Policies	Legislative\Complete	Streets\Complete	Streets	072016	JE	Draft	(5).docx	

2. corridors	serving	a	relatively	high	number	of	users	of	non‐motorized	
transportation	modes;	

3. corridors	providing	important	continuity	or	connectivity	links	to	existing	
pedestrian	or	bicycle	networks;	

4. projects	identified	in	regional	or	local	thoroughfare,	bicycle	and	pedestrian	
plans.	

	
	
III. Project	Relevancy	
	

A. Projects	covered	by	this	policy	are	those	that	provide	an	opportunity	to	include	
pavement	markings	and	signs;	street	and	sidewalk	lighting;	sidewalk	and	pedestrian	
improvements;	Americans	with	Disabilities	Act	Title	VI	compliance;	transit	
accommodations;	bicycle	accommodations;	and	streetscapes	that	appeal	to	and	
promote	pedestrian	use.	

	
B. Maintenance	projects	and	activities,	which	include	repaving,	typically	do	not	

provide	an	opportunity	to	increase	roadway	width,	add	sidewalks,	or	otherwise	add	
additional	assets.		These	projects	may	offer	the	opportunity	to	improve	conditions	
with	signage,	restriping,	reducing	travel	lane	widths,	or	other	non‐widening	options.		
System	preservation	projects	should	not	decrease	the	safety	for	any	road	users.	

	
	
IV. Policy	Exceptions	
	

A. Projects	that	meet	one	or	more	of	the	following	criteria	are	exempt	from	this	policy:	
	

1. accommodation	of	a	street	use	prohibited	by	law;	
2. require	more	space	than	is	physically	available;	or	
3. require	that	the	project	would	be	located	where	both	current	and	future	

demand	is	not	evident;	or	
4. create	an	increase	in	project	costs	beyond	the	approved	budget;	or		
5. would	have	adverse	impacts	on	environmental	resources	such	as	streams,	

wetlands,	floodplains,	or	on	historic	structures	or	sites	above	and	beyond	the	
impacts	of	currently	existing	infrastructure.	

	
B. Ordinary	maintenance	activities	such	as	mowing,	snowplowing,	sweeping,	spot	

repair,	joint	and	crack	sealing	or	pothole	filling	do	not	require	that	elements	of	this	
policy	be	applied	beyond	the	scope	of	that	maintenance	activity.			

	
C. Street	projects	may	exclude	the	development	of	sidewalks	in	areas	falling	outside	

those	identified	as	appropriate	for	sidewalks	on	the	basis	of	an	adopted	sidewalk	
policy	or	other	plans.	

	
	



	

	 Page	3	of	4	
	
O:\Policies\Policies	Legislative\Complete	Streets\Complete	Streets	072016	JE	Draft	(5).docx	

V. Design	Criteria	
	

A. The	Town,	through	its	Public	Works	and	its	Planning	and	Development	
departments,	shall	utilize	design	criteria,	standards,	and	guidelines	based	upon	
recognized	best	practices	in	street	design,	construction,	and	operation.		To	the	
greatest	extent	possible,	the	Town	shall	follow	the	standards	with	particular	
emphasis	on	pedestrian	and	bicycle	markings	and	wayfinding	signage.	

	
B. Resources	to	be	referenced	in	developing	these	standards	shall	include,	but	not	

necessarily	be	limited	to,	the	latest	editions	of:	
	

1. American	Association	of	State	Highway	Transportation	Officials	(“AASHTO”)	
policy	on	Geometric	Design	of	Highways	and	Streets,	Guide	to	Planning,	
Designing,	and	Operating	Pedestrian	Facilities,	and	Guide	to	Development	of	
Bicycle	Facilities;	

2. Institute	of	Transportation	Engineers	(“ITE”)	Designing	Walkable	Urban	
Thoroughfares:	A	Context	Sensitive	Approach;	

3. National	Association	of	City	Transportation	Officials	(“NACTO”)	Urban	Bikeway	
Design	Guide;	

4. U.S.	Access	Board	Public	Right‐of‐Way	Accessibility	Guidelines;	
5. Highway	Capacity	Manual	and	Highway	Safety	Manual;	and	
6. The	Manual	of	Uniform	Traffic	Control	Devices.	

	
C. The	Town	may	consider	innovative	or	non‐traditional	design	options	that	provide	a	

comparable	level	of	safety	and	utility	for	users	as	those	listed	above.	
	
	
VI. Policy	Administration	
	

A. This	policy	shall	be	administered	by	the	Town	Manager,	in	consultation	with	the	
Town	Engineer	and	Department	of	Planning	and	Development.		The	Town	
Manager’s	determination	as	to	whether	a	project	complies	with	this	policy	shall	be	
final.			

	
B. The	Brunswick	Bicycle	and	Pedestrian	Advisory	Committee	(“BBPAC”),	the	Town	

appointed	committee,	shall	be	briefed	on	potential	future	projects	covered	by	this	
policy	when	those	projects	are	included	in	the	Town’s	capital	improvement	program	
(“CIP”).		This	will	allow	BBPAC	an	opportunity	to	provide	its	views	regarding	
complete	streets	issues	early	in	the	planning	and	design	process.			

	
C. BBPAC	shall	also	be	notified,	as	early	in	the	development	process	as	practical,	of	

projects	not	included	in	the	CIP.		If	BBPAC	determines	that	a	project,	with	a	value	
greater	than	$100,000,	is	not	consistent	with	this	policy,	BBPAC	may	appeal	to	the	
Town	Manager	or	his	designee.		Such	appeal	shall	be	made	within	thirty	(30)	days	of	
notification.		The	Town	Manager	shall	respond	to	BBPAC’s	appeal	within	thirty	(30)	



	

	 Page	4	of	4	
	
O:\Policies\Policies	Legislative\Complete	Streets\Complete	Streets	072016	JE	Draft	(5).docx	

days	of	that	appeal.		Projects	with	an	estimated	value	equal	to	or	less	than	$100,000	
are	not	subject	to	appeal.			

	
	
VII. Intergovernmental	Cooperation	
	

A. The	Town	will	cooperate	together	and	with	other	transportation	agencies	including	
the	Maine	Department	of	Transportation	(“MDOT”)	to	ensure	the	principles	and	
practices	of	complete	streets	are	embedded	within	their	planning,	design,	
construction,	and	maintenance	activities.	

	
	
VIII. Performance	and	Reporting	
	

A. BBPAC	shall	monitor	compliance	with	the	policy	and	make	recommendations	for	its	
improvement.		BBPAC	shall	report	to	the	Town	Council	on	an	annual	basis	on	
transportation	projects	undertaken	within	the	prior	year	and	planned	within	the	
coming	year	highlighting	the	extent	to	which	each	of	these	projects	has	met	or	will	
meet	the	objectives	of	this	policy.	

	
	
IX. Emergencies	

	
A. To	meet	a	public	emergency	affecting	public	safety,	public	property,	or	public	

convenience,	the	Town	Manager	may	waive	any	portion	of	this	policy.	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
Proposed	to	Town	Council:		August	15,	2010	
	
	



ITEM 96
BACK UP MATERIALS
TO BE PROVIDED 
PRIOR TO THE 
MEETING 



ITEM 97
BACK UP MATERIALS 



	
	

M	E	M	O	R	A	N	D	U	M	
	
	
TO:	 John	Eldridge	
	 Town	Manager	
	
FROM:	 Julie	Henze	
	 Finance	Director	
	
DATE:	 August	5,	2016	
	
SUBJECT:	 Sealed	bid	auction	of	tax‐acquired	properties	
	
	
	
In	accordance	with	the	tax‐acquired	property	policy,	and	the	procedures	established	by	the	Town	
Council,	the	Town	opened	bids	on	tax	acquired	properties	on	August	1,	2016	at	1:15	PM.		Following	
is	a	listing	of	the	properties	for	sale	and	the	bids	received:	
	
16	Jordan	Avenue;	Parcel	U08‐63	 (minimum	bid	$30,000)	
John	L.	French	 	$									31,900		
Hope	&	Chris	Shaw	 	$									57,000		

403	Bath	Road;	Parcel	046‐012	 (minimum	bid	$15,000)	
Brian	&	Laurie	Webber	 	$									15,500		

0	Coombs	Road;	Parcel	038‐004‐00B	 (minimum	bid	$2,000)	
None	received	
	
	
All	bids	were	in	compliance	with	the	requirements	of	the	Notice	of	Sale	of	Tax‐Acquired	Property,	
and	were	accompanied	by	certified	funds	of	at	least	the	minimum	bid	amount.	
	
As	you	will	be	recommending	acceptance	of	the	high	bid	on	16	Jordan	Ave,	we	have	returned	the	
certified	check	to	Mr.	French.		We	have	also	sent	letters	to	the	Shaws	and	the	Webbers	informing	
them	that	the	Council	will	receive	your	recommendations	on	August	15,	2016.		Following	Town	
Council	action,	we	will	be	prepared	to	work	with	the	successful	bidders	to	complete	the	sale	
transactions	by	September	14,	2016.	
	
	
	


	Agenda - August 15, 2016
	Agenda Packet - August 15, 2016
	ca a  yes
	ca a Aug 1, 2016 min
	mr a  yes
	Mr A Town Council Expenditure Rpt July 2016
	MR a Town Council Revenue Rpt July 2016
	mr b  yes
	MR b Revaluation  8-11-2016
	mr c  no
	mr d  yes
	MR d Crystal Spring PB special permit
	mr e   yes
	MR e DAC
	DAC-Brunswick Thank You
	Frank Wood Bridge  DAC Brusnwick

	mr f  no
	92  yes
	92 byrnes_20160809131112
	93  yes
	93 MPWW packet for TC 080116
	94  yes
	94 Ambulance fees memo to TM 072016
	95  yes
	95 Complete Streets Policy 080516
	96  back up to follow
	97  yes
	97 tax acquired property bids  080516




